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ULTRAMARINE SPECIALTY CHEMICALS LIMITED
Manufacturers of inorganic pigments.

[A wholly owned subsidiary of ULTRAMARINE & PIGMENTS tlMlTED]

NOTICE

NOTICE is herebygiven that the 5th Annual General Meeting of the members of ULTRAMARINE

SPECIALTY CHEMICALS LIMITED will be held at the registered office of the Company at
No. 556, Vanagaram Road, Ambattur, Chennai - 600053 on July 22,2024 at 11.00 am(lST)

with the option of video conferencing facility to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for
the financial year ended on March 37,2024,the reports ofthe Board of Directors and

Auditors'thereon and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended on March 37,2024, together with the reports of the Board of Directors
and Auditors'thereon as circulated to the Members and presented to the meeting be
and are hereby approved and adopted."

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. V. Bharathram (DlN:08444583), who retires by
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment and in this regard, to
consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. V Bharathram (DlN: 08444583), Director, who retires by
rotation and being eliglble, offers himself for re-appointment be and is hereby re-
appointed as a Director of the Company."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without mod ification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

Approval to the appointment of Mr. S Srinivasan (D|N:106532U) as an Executive
Director - Operations.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149,752,L96,L97 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules thereunder and provisions of Articles of
Association of the Company and based on the recommendation of the Board of
Directors, consent of the shareholders is hereby accorded to the appointment of
Mr. S. Srinivasan (DlN:10653211) as an Executive director-operations for a period of
3 years with effect from June 05, 2024 on the following terms and Conditions and shall
be liable to retire by rotation.

Factory: No.59A, Block No.C, Road No.13, AP llC lndustrial Park,

Naidupet, Tirupati District, Andhra Pradesh - 524 421.

Regd. Office:556, Vanagaram Road, Ambattur, Chennai- 600053.
Phone : 009 1-44-26735-l OO I 267367 04 | Fax : 009 1-44-26821201
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ilSa lary per month Rs.95,800/-

ii) ln addition to the above remuneration, Mr. Srinivasan shall be entitled to
perquisites like HRA, medical reimbursement, leave travel concession for self and

family, NPS, Special allowances, Group Medical insurance, Others (Conveyance,

Telephone, Uniform, Driver's reimbursement) etc., in accordance with the rules of the
Company.

(iii) Variable pay as per the achievement of Target.

(iv)company's contribution to provident fund, Gratuity payment shall not be included
in the computation of limits for remuneration or perquisites as aforesaid and

Mr. Srinivasan shall be entitled to the same.

RESOTVED FURTHER THAT any of the directors of the company Secretary of the
company is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things as may be required to
effectuate the above resolution."

By the Order of the Board
For Ultramarine Speci Chemicals [td

s.R anan
Comp nys cretary

Regd. Office
No.556, Vanagaram Road,

Ambattur, Chennai - 600053
Date: May t3,2O24

Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a

proxy to attend advote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be
a member of the Company.A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not
exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding
more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy

for any other person or shareholder. The instrument appointing a proxy should,
however, be deposited not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the
commencement of the meeting.

,V
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2. The Register of Members will remain closed from July 15, 2024 to July 22,2024
(both the days inclusive).

3. The proxy holder shall prove his/her identity at the time of attending the
meeting. When a member appoints a proxy and both the member and proxy

attend the meetin& proxy stands automatically revoked.

4. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to
attend the meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the
Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their
behalf at the meeting.

5. The Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting.
5. Proxies registers are open for inspection during the period beginning twenty-

four hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the Meeting and
ending with the conclusionof the meeting. lnspection shall be allowed between
11.00 A.M. and 5.00 P.M.

7. All documents referred to in the notice are open for inspection atthe Registered
office of the Company on all the working days of the Company between 11:00
A.M and 1:00 P.M. up to the date ofAnnual General meeting.

Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Companies act 2013

As required by sub section 1 of Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
following explanatory statement set out all the material facts relating to Notice
dated May 13,2024.

Mr. S Srinivasan is working with the Company Since 2020 as Assistant Vice President-
Technology and was responsible for successful commercial production of Sapphire I

and Complex inorganic pigments at Naidupeta with an installed capacity of 1500 MT
and 550 MT respectively. Presently, he is in charge ofSapphire ll Project which is under
implementation.

Keeping in view the experience and expertise of Mr. S. Srinivasan, the Board considers
it desirable that the Company continues to avail ofthe services of Mr. Srinivasan and
accordingly recommends the resolution for approval by the members.

Save and except Mr. S Srinivasan, being an appointee and his relatives none of the
directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the company/their relatives are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise,

The Board of directors recommends the resolution at item no.3 as an ordinary
resolution for the approval of the members.

By the Order f the Board
For Ultramarine Specialty Che ls Limited,

Regd. Office:
No. 556, Vanagaram Road,
Ambattur, Chennai - 600053
May t3,2024

s nan
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u ULTRAMARINE SPECIALTY CHEMICALS LIMITED

Directo/s Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 5th Annual Report and the audited financial
statement of the Company for financial year ended March 3I, 2024.

Financial Highlights:

A summary of the Company's Financial Results for the financial year ended March 37,2024 is

as under:
Amount (Rs. takhs)

Particulars Financial year ended
March 31,2024

Financial year ended
March 31,2023

Revenue from operations 3,764 1,615
Expenses 3,32t 7,253
Profit before tax 463
Deferred tax (81) (64)

Profit after Tax 381

State of affairs of the company:

During the year under review, the company commenced the commercial production of
complex inorganic pigments project with an installed capacity of 550 MT at Andhra Pradesh
lndustrial lnfrastructure Corporation (APllC) lndustrial Park, Naidupet, Nellore district in the
state of Andhra Pradesh (AP). Project to add additional capacity of 1500 MT of pigments with
a capital outlay of Rs.80 Crores is under implementation and will commence commercial in a

phased manner over a period of 18 months, a part of the capacity will be added in FY 2024-
25.

Dividend:

ln order to conserve reserves for working capital, no dividend on equity and preference

dividend is recommended by the Board for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024.

Capital Structure:

a. Authorized share capital:

The authorized share capital ofthe Company as on March 31, 2024 stood at Rs 88,30,00,000

consisting of Rs 5,20,00,000 (Five Crore Twenty lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and

3,53,000 (Three Lakhs Sixty three thousand) 7.5% Non- cumulative redeemable and optionally
convertible preference shares of Rs. 1,000/-.

Factory i No.59A, Block No.C, Road No.13, APllc lndustrial Park,

Naidupet, Tirupati District, Andhra Pradesh - 524 421.

Regd. Office:555, Vanagaram Road, Ambattur, Chennai - 600053.
Phone : 0091-44-26136700 / 26736704 I Fax : 0091-44-26821201

Certified towards ISO 9001 | ISO 14001 | ISO 45001
CIN: U24300TN201 gPLCI 33064

Manufacturers of inorganic pigments.

[A wholly owned subsidiarv ot ULTRAMARINE & PIGMENTS LIMITED]
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b. Paid up capital:

During the year under review, the Board at its meeting held on May 3t,2023, February 07,

2024 and March 23, 2024 has made the following allotments to Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd,

holding company:

.

45,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs 4,50,00,000.

50,000 7.5% non-cumulative redeemable preference shares offace value of Rs 1,000

each aggregating to Rs. 5,00,00,000.

93,33,333 equity shares of Rs.15/- each (including premium of Rs 5/ each)

2O,OO0 7 S% non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of face value of Rs 1,000

each aggregating to Rs. 2,00,00,000.

I .

iv.

The Company has obtained a valuation report from a registered valuer for allotment of
14,00,00,000 equity share capital as mandated under Section 62 of Companies Act, 2013. The

value arrived at Rs. 15/- each per equity shares (Rs. 10/- as face value & Rs. 5/- as security
premium).

Major events occurred during the financial year 2023-24

The Company by virtue of Regulation 16(1)(c) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 became a material subsidiary during the financial year

ended March 3I,2024.

Meetings:

During the year following nine board meetings were held:

May 18, 2023 May 3t,2O23 )uly 25,2023
September 76,2023 November 08, 2023 February 07 ,2024
March 07,2024 March 23, 2024 (two meetings)

Directors:

There has been no change in the composition of the directors. The following directors
continue to hold the directorship as on March 37,2O24:

a. Mr. R Sampath, Non-Executive director

b. Ms. Tara Parthasarathy, Non-Executive director

c. Mr. V Bharathram, Non-Executive director

d. Mr. Navin M Ram, lndependent director

5



Change in composition of Board of directors and Key Managerial Personnel after the

financial year:

.The meeting of Board of directors held on May 13,2024 approved the appointment of

Mr. S Srinivasan (DlN- 10653211) as the Chief executive officer and at the meeting of Board

of directors held on June 05, 2024 approved the appointment as an Executive Director-

operations, subject to the approval of shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

o The meeting of Board of directors held on May L3,2024 approved the appointment of

Mr. A Palanisamy, a qualified cost accountant as the Chief financial officer of the company

in accordance with Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013.

Details of deposits:

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public

and no amount of principal and interest were outstanding as on March 3L,2024.

Reporting of frauds by auditors:

During the year under review, no fraud was reported by the Statutory Auditor, Secretarial Auditor and

Cost Auditor to the Audit Committee, as required under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Director retiring by rotation and re-appointment

As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Mr. V. Bharathram (D|N.08444583), retires by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

Directors' responsibility statement:

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec. 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm
that:
il in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024 the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departu res.

iil appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied and such.judgment and
estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the company as at March 3L, 2024 and of the profit/ Loss of the
company for the year ended that date.

iiil proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities,

ivl the annual accounts have been prepared on a "going concern "basis.

vl that proper internal financial controls are laid down and are adequate and operating
effectively.

vil that proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws have

been devised and such systems are adequate and operating effectively.



Particulars of loans, Guarantee or lnvestments

During the year under review, no loans, guarantee as envisaged under Section 186 of
Companies Act, 2013 were made.

Related Party Transactions

The details relating to related party transactions are provided in the note no. 38 to financial

statements. The disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h)

of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC -2 is not applicable.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
And Redressal) Act, 2013

No. of complaints: Nil

Material changes that occurred after the financial year but before the date of the report:

The following material changes occurred after the financial year but before the date of the
report:

Mr. S Srinivasan, Assistant Vice President-Technology development was appointed as the
Chief executive officer and Mr. A Palanisamy as the Chief financial officer of the company at
the meeting of Board of directors held on May 13, 2024 as envisaged under section 203 of
Companies Act, 2013

Extract of Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of Annual Return in Form MGT- 9 are given in Annexure

- 1to this report.

Secretarial audit report

The unqualified Secretarial audit report of the company for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2024 issued by RLS & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries dated May 13,2024 is part
of Annexure-2 to this report.

Statutory auditors:

M/s. Brahmayya & Co. Chartered accountants, Chennai was appointed as the statutory
auditors ofthe Companyto hold office for a period of5 years from the conclusion of 1st Annual
General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 21't August 2020 till the conclusion of 6th

AGM to be held in the calendar year 2025.

lnternal auditors:

M/s M S Krishnaswamy & Co., (Firm Registration no. 1552-5) , Practicing Chartered

accountants was appointed to review and enhance internal financial controls across the
company in order to prevent and detect frauds and errors,

Particulars of Employees

The information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1),
(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,

2014 in respect of employees of the Company: Nil.

1



lnformation as per Section 13a (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

i) Conservation of Energy

Your company is focusing more on environment protection and energy conservation.

Operational units are accredited to integrated mana8ement systems & certifications.

ii) Technology absorption, adaptation, innovation

Your Company is taking initiatives for improving the quality of all products by absorbing

new technologies in product / process developments through modernization and also by

cost-effective methods / processes.

iii) Foreign exchange earnings & outgo

Your Company is constantly exploring new markets to enhance the exports of its products.

Earnings in Foreign Exchange from Exports are given in Notes forming part of Accounts.

Rs. in Lakhs

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Foreign exchange earnings 2302.35 1079.35

Foreign exchange outgo 10.68

Acknowledgement

Your Directors thank the Central and State Government Departments, Organisations and
Agencies for the co-operation extended by them.

On Behalf of the Board
For Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals [imited,

Tara Parthasarathy
Director

IDlN:07121058]

V. Bharathram
Director

IDlN:08a4as$]

Place: Chennai

Date: 13th May 2024
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Annexure -1

EXTRACT OF ANNUAT RETURN

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2024

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(11 of the Companies
Management and Administrationt Rules, 20141

FORM NO. MGT-9

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing 10% or more ofthe total turnover ofthe company

shall be stated:-

ctN u24300TN2019P1C133064

Registration Date 09.t2.20t9
Name of the Company Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company having share capital
Address ofthe Registered office and contact
details

No.556, Vanagaram Road, Ambattur,
Chennai - 600053, Ph: 0097-44-26736700 -
26L367 04, F ax: 0097-44-2682720!

Whether listed company No

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

s.

No.

Name and Description of
main products / services

NIC Code of the*
Product/ service

% to total turnover of the
Company

1 Manufacturing of chemicals 202 100%

a

Not Applicable



* As per National Industrial Classification - Ministry of Statistics and Programme implementation

III. PARTICI]LARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN @quity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity):

Category-wise S hare H olding :

S

No

Name and address

ofthe company
CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary/
Associate

o/o of
shares

Held

Applicable
Section

Ultramarine &.

Pigments Limited

L24224MHI960PLC0 l I 856 Hotding 100 2 (46)

No. ofShares held at the beginning ofthe year No. of Shares held at the end oflhe year

Category

of

Shar€holders
Demat Phvsical Total

o/o ol

Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total

o/o of

Total

Shares

ia) Individual,tHUF

Equity Shares

60 60 60 60 0.00

(b) Central Golt

(c) State Govt (s)

(d) Bodies Corp.

Ultramarine &

Pigments Ltd

Equity Shares

Preference Shares

3,32,49,940

2,58,000

3,32,49,940

2,58,000

99.22

0.78

4,70.83,273

328,000

4,70,83,273

328,000

99.30

0.70

(e) Banks / FI

(f) Any Other

Trust

Sub-Total (A) (1) 3,35,08,000 3,35,08,000 1000/0 4,14,11,333 4,74,11333 1000h

(A) Promoters

(l) Indian

o/"

of

Change

during

the

Year

0.00

0.08%

0.008%

(2) Foreign

lo

l.

0.06



(d) Banks / FI

(e) Any Other....

Sub-Total (A) (2)

Total Shareholding
of Promot€r
= (A) (l) + (A) (2)

3,35,08,000 3,35,08,000 t00yo 4,7 4,11,333 4,74,11333 100.h 0.008%

No. ofShares held at the beginning ofthe year No. ofShares held at the end ofthe year

Category

of

Shareholders Total

o/o oI

Total

Shares

Demat Physical Total

Vo of

Total

Shares

(a) Mutual Funds

(b) Banks/FI

(c) Central Go!'t

(d) State Govt G)

(e) Venture
Capital funds

(0 Insurance
Companies

(g) FIIS

(h) Foreign
Venture
Capital Funds

(i) Foreign
Porlfolio
Investors
(Coporate)

"h

of

Change

during

the

Year

(B) PublicShareholding

(l) Institutions

1t

(a) NRIs

Individuals

(b) Other

Individuals

(c) Bodies Corp.

Demat Physical

C) Others
(Specify)



(2) Non- Institutionss

(a) Bodies Corp

(c) Others (Speciry)

Sub-Total (BXl)

i. Indian

ii. Overseas

(b) Individuals

i. Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal

share capital up

to
Rs. 2 lakh

ii. Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess ofRs. 2
lakh

IEPF

Escrow Account

Clearing members

Hindu undivided
families

NRI

Sub-Total (B)(2)

Total
Shareholding of
Public

= (B) (l) + (B) (2)

C. Shares held by
custodian for
GDRS & ADRS

4,74,11,333 l00o/o3"35,08,000 3,3s,08,000 t00vo 4,7 4,11,333Grand Total
(A+B+C)

0.008%

TZ

Trusts



(ii) Shareholding of Promoters:

S.No Shareholders'

Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the

year

Shareholding at the end ofthe year

No. of

Shares

%" of

total

Shares

ofthe

company

ohof

Shares

Pledged /
encumber

ed

to total

shares

No. of

Shares

o/o of

total

Shares

of the

company

9/oof Shares

Pledged /

encumbered

to total

shares

I Ultramafinc

& Piomenrs lJd

3,35,07 ,940 99.940/o 4,74,11,273 99.94o/o

2 R. Sampath t0 0.01 l0 0.00

3 Indira Sundaramjan l0 0.01 l0 0.00

4 R. Psthasardlhy l0 0.01 l0 0.00

5 V. Bharathram l0 0.01 l0 0.00

Tara PanhasaBthy 10 0_01 l0 0.00

7 R- Sen$il Kumar l0 0.01 l0 0.00

Total 3J5,08,000 100.00 4,74,t lJ33 r00.00

[Sl. No. 2 to 7 are the Nominees of Ultramarine & Pigments Limited]

(iii) Change in Promolen' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change): Refer (ii) above.

(fu) Shareholding Pattem of top ten Shareholders (other lhan Direclors, Prornoters akd Holders of GDRs
and ADRs): Nil

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Ke! Managerial Personnel:

st.

No

Name ofthe Directors

ANd KMP

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Shareholding
during the year specifring the

reasons for increase / decrease

(e.9. allotment / transfer /
bonuY sweat equity etc):

Shareholding at

beginning ofthe year

the Cumulative Shareholding

during the year

No.

shares

of
Yo of total

shares ofthe

company

No. of shares

7o of total

shares ofthe

company

Mr. R. Sampath, Director

At the beginning ofthe year 0.01 10 0.01

At the End ofthe year 10 0.01 10 0.01

2 Mr. V. Bharathram ,
Director
At the beginning ofthe year l0 0.01 i0 0.01

13
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At the End ofthe Year 10 0.01 10 0.01

3 Ms. Tara Parthasarathy,
Director
At the beginning ofthe year l0 0.01 l0 0.01

At the End ofthe vear 10 0.0r 10 0.01

4. Mr. S Ramanan, Company
Secretary
At the beginning ofthe year Nil Nil Nil Nit

At the end ofthe year Nil Nil Nil NiI

TV. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONI{EL:

A, Remuneralion ,o Managing Direclor, Wolelime Dircclow arrd/or Manager: Nil

B. Remunerution to other Directon: Nil

V. Pf,NALTIES / PT'NISIIMENTi COMPOT]IIDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Section of
the
Companies

Act

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty /
PunishmenU

Compounding
fees imposed

Authority
IRD/
NCLT/
corrRrl

Appeal made, if
any
(give Details)

Penalty None

Punishment

Compounding None

C. OTHEROFFICERS INDEFAULT

Penalty None

Punishment None

Compounding None

On Behalfof the Board
For Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited,

Tara Parthasarathy
Director

[DN:07121058]

V. Bharathram
Director

IDIN: 08444583]Place: Chennai / Date: 13h May,2024

14
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Annexure - 2

FORM MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 ofthe
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 20141

To,
The Members,
ULTRAMARINE SPECIALW CHEMICALS LIMITED

No.556, Vanagaram Road, Ambattur,
Chennai 600053

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions

and the adherence to good corporate practices by ULTRAMARINE SPECIALW CHEMICALS

LIMITED ICorporate ldentity No. U24300TN2019P1C133064.] (hereinafter called "the
Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a mannerthat provided us a reasonable basis

for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion
thereon.

Based on my verification of Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided and
explanations by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March,2024 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2024 according to
the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the Companies Act,
1956 to the extent applicable;
(ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct lnvestment and Overseas Direct lnvestment. There was no
External Commercial Borrowings during the Financial Year under review;
(iii) I have reviewed the systems and mechanisms established by the Company for ensuring
compliances under the other applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed

under various laws which are applicable to the company.

1t-
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The Secretarial Standards issued by the lnstitute of Company Secretaries of lndia (lCSl); During
the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, and Standards etc. mentioned above.

I further report that:
a) the company has modified the charge lD 100601403 created in favor ofThe Hongkong and

Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited on 28th February 2024 and filed necessary form for
modification of Charge with ROC.

b) the Company has increased authorized share capital from Rs.72,70,00,000 (Divided into
3,64,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each, 3,63,000 7.5% Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of Rs. 1,000 each) to Rs.74,05,00,000 (Divided into 3,77,50,000 equity
shares of Rs.10 each,3,63,000 7.5% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.

1,000 each) and further increased to Rs.88,30,00,000 (Divided into 5,20,00,000 equity
shares of Rs.10 each, 3,63,000 7.5% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs.1,000 each) filed necessary forms with ROC.

c) the Company has allotted 45,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10 each on 31st May 2023 and

93,33,333 equity shares of Rs.15 each (including premium at 5 per share) on 23rd March
20241o M/s. Ultramarine & Pigments Limited and filed necessary forms with ROC.

e) the Company has appointed M/s M.S Krishnaswamy & Co, (Firm Registration no. 1552-5),

Practicing Chartered Accountants, Chennai as lnternal Auditor for the financial year 2023-

24.

l(

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

I further report that
The Board of director has been duly constituted with one independent director. However, as

on the date of the report, the company is in the process of evaluating CEO/CFO in order to
comply with Section 203 of Companies Act, 2013. The Company has not appointed Managing
Director/ Whole Time Director/Manager During the year under review and there was no
change in Directors.
Adequate notice is given to all Directors before schedule ofthe Board Meetings, Agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Based on the verification ofthe records and minutes, the decisions were carried out with the
consent of majority of the Board of Directors and there were no dissenting members views
recorded in the minutes. Further, in the minutes of the General Meetings, the members who
voted against the resolution(s)if any have been properly recorded.

d) the Company has allotted 5O,0OO 7.5o/o Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of
Rs.1000 each on 07th February 2O24 and 20,000 7.5o/o Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference shares of Rs.1000 each on 23rd March 2024 to M/s. Ultramarine & Pigments
Limited and filed necessary forms with ROC.



f) Based on the verification of records ofthe Company and as per information received, the
holding Company M/s. Ultramarine & Pigments Ltd has given fund for project
implementation as and when required. The Company has not made any private placement

during the year. However, the company has issued further capital in the form of equity and
preference shares to its holding company during the year and the requirements of Section

62 of companies Act 2013 have been complied except for allotment of shares beyond the
stipulated period and the funds raised have been used for the purpose for which the funds
were raised,

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

FOR RLs & ASSOCIATES

RAJIBLOCHAN SARANGI

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

M No. A20312, CP NO. 17498

uDrN-A020312F000450885(25.0s.2024)

Place: Chennai
Date: 13th May 2024

This report to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms

an integral part of this report.
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Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based

on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provides a reasonable basis

for opinion.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor ofthe efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs ofthe Company.

7. lfurther report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws like

Direct & lndirect tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same has been

subject to review by the statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

FOR RLs & ASSOCIATES

RAJIBLOCHAN SARANGI

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

M No. A20312, CP NO. 17498

uDrN-A020312F0004s088s(25.0s.2024)
Place: Chennai

Date: 13th May 2024

tg

ANNEXURE.,,A"

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness offinancial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company since the same had been subjected to review by the statutory
financial audit and other designated professionals.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of Ultramarine Speciality Chemicals [imited

Re rt on the Fin n tements

1. Opinion

1.1 We have audited the financial statements of Ultramarine Speciality Chemicals limited ("the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements,
including a Summary of Material Accounting Policies and other explanatory information ("the
financial statements").

L.2 ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 as

amended ('the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the lndian Accounting standards under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (lndian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended, "(lnd AS)" and other accounting principles
generally accepted in lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31't March, 2024, and
its profit and other comprehensive income, chanBes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

2 Basis for Opinion

2.1 We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (sAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl") together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the Financial Statements.

3 Key Audit Matters

3.1 Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have

determined that there are no other key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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4 Other lnformation

4.r The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation ofthe other
information. The other information comprises the information included in Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report and Shareholder/s lnformation but does not include the financial
statements and our audito/s report thereon.

4.2 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form ofassurance conclusion thereon,

4.3 ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
a ppea rs to be materially misstated.

4.4 lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial
statements

5.1 The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) ofthe Act with respect to the preparation ofthese financialstatements that give
a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the lnd AS specified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irre8ularities; selection and

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view a nd are free from material m isstatement, whether d ue

to fraud or error.

5.2 ln preparing the financial statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountinB unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

5.3 The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagat
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5.1 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a

whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an

a uditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

6.2 As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The rlsk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audlt procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of Ma nagement and Board of Directors' use of the going

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a

material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audito/s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

c

e

6.3
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deflciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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6.4 We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

6.5 From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

7.L As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Orde/'), issued by the
Central Government of lndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the
extent a pplicable.

7.2 As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ofour
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) ln our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

so far as it a ppears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 7.2(hXvi) below on reporting under rule 11(B) of the Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rule,2014

c) The Balance Sheet, the statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) ln our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the lndian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (lndian Accounting
Standa rd ) Rules, 2015 as amended.

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31'tMarch,2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31n

March, 2024 from being appolnted as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) ln our opinion, the modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters

connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 7.2(b) above on reporting under Section

143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 7.2(hXvi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.
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g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in "Annexure B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and

operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financialstatements;

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 1.1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations as at 31't March, 2024 which would
impact its financia I position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts includinB derivative contracts for which
there were any materialforeseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the lnvestor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding

Party ("Ultimate Eeneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the LJltimate Beneficia ries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has conre to our notice that has caused

us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as

provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The company has not paid/declared any dividends during the year under review' Hence,

compliance of section 123 of the Act is not applicable.
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iv. (a)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entity ("lntermed iaries"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writinB or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Com pany ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, except for the instance mentioned
below and as explained in note 48 of the financial statements, the Company has used

accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for
all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software and we did not come across

any instance of the audit trial feature being tampered wlth :

a). The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled at the

database level to log any direct data changes for the accounting software used for
maintaining the books of accounts.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1st

April 2023, reporting under 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

on the preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record

retention is not applicable for the financialyear ended 31st March 2024.

vii. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Repod in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, no remuneration is paid by the
company to its directors during the year and hence, provisions of section 197 of the Act

are not applicable.

For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0005115

t)
f..

^.JR.Nagend
Partner

Place: Chenna i

Date: 13th May 2024
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(i)

Annexure - 'A' to lndependent Auditors' Report
IReferred to in paragraph 7.1 under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements' of our
Report of even datel

On the basis of such checks as considered appropriate and in terms of the information and explanation
furnished to us, we state as under:

(a) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of lntangible Assets

Relevant
line item
in the
Ealance
sheet

Description
of item of
property

Gross
carrying
value
({ in
Lakhs)

Title deeds
helil in the
name of

Whether title deed
holder is a
promoter, director
or relative# of
promoter*/director
or employee of
promoter/director

Property
held
since
which
date

Reason for not
being held in
the name of
the company

PPE

Plot No. 59A
14.59 Acres
of Land in
lndustrial
Estate,
Naidupet

S.No.266(P)
& 24(P) &
12(P), 13(Pl

Doc No.
No.72Ll2O22

Andhra
Pradesh

lnd ustrial
lnfrastructu re
Corporation
limited
(APilC)

No 2022

The Sale

Agreement is

registered in the
name of the
company and
Sale deed will be

executed by
APIIC on
compliance to
conditions like
construction of
space and
commencement
of production.
(Refer Note No.

4(i))
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(b) As explained to us, the company has a program of verification to cover all items of
Property, Plant and Eq uipment in a phased ma nner to cover a ll assets once in every three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable. Pursuant to the program, the management
carried out the physical verification of the Property, Plant and Equipment and during the
year. The discrepancies noticed on such verificatlon were not material;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are

held in the name of the Company except the following:

972.24

A
6[,mr)iw



Brahmayp co.
Chartered Accountants

PPE

Plot No. 59
BLOCK-C

7.71 Acres
of Land in
lndustrial
Estate,
Menakur

613.25

And h ra

Pradesh

lndustrial
lnfrastructure
Corporation
(APilc)

No 2024

The Sale

Agreement is

registered in the
name of the
company and
Sale deed will be

executed by
APIIC on
compliance to
other terms and
conditions.
(Refer Note 4(i))

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible
assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending aBainst the Company as

at 31't March, 2024 for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) As explained to us, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals which in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate having regard to the size and nature of business and no
discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on physical

verification;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in

excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets.

ln our opinion, the quarterly returns or.statements filed by the Company with such banks are in

agreement with the books of account of the Company. The Company has not been sanctioned

any working capital limit from the financial institutions.

(iii) The Company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited

Liability Partnerships or any other parties and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a), (b), (c), (d),

(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) ln our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any

investments to the parties covered under section 185 and 186 of the Act.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit to which the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the
Act and The companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 would apply. As informed to us,

no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve

Bank of lndia or any court or any otheltribunal related to compliance with above provisions.

./-o
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

The maintenance of cost records pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules,
2014 prescribed by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Act are not appliable
to the company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by
us, the Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and
Services Tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues and there are no undisputed
statutory dues outstanding as at 3lst March 2024, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the company and information and explanations given to us,

there are no outstanding amounts in respect of sales tax, service tax, duty of customs,
goods and services tax and other statutory dues that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the lncome
Tax Act, 1961. (43 of 1961).

(a) As per the information and explanations given to us, there was no default in repayment of
loans or other borrowings (no amounts due during the financial year) and the company has

not defaulted in the payment of interest thereon.

(d) The company has availed term loan during the year from banks and holding company and

the term loan have been applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(e) Accordlng to the information and explanations given to us, no funds raised on short term
basis have been utilised for long term purposes during the year.

Since the company does not have any Subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies and

hence the reporting under clause 3(ix) (e) & (f) is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(xXa) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any private placement during

the year. However, the company has issued further capital in the form of equity and

preference shares to its holding company during the year and the requirements of Section

42 and Section 62 of Companies Act, 2013 have been complied except for allotment of
shares beyond the stlpulated period. The funds raised have been used for the purpose for
which the funds were raised.
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(c) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by the bank or financial institution or

Bovernment or any government authority.
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(x i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(x iv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagat
Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014.lndia

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information a nd explanations
given to us, and during the course of our examination of the books and records of the
Company, there have been no cases offraud by the company or any fraud on the company
noticed or reported during the year under report.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Compa nies Act, 2013 has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date ofthis report.

(c) To the best ofour knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there were no whistle. blower complaints received by the Company during the
year (and up to the date of this report).

ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) ofthe Order are not
applica ble.

According to the information and explanations Biven to us and based on our examination ofthe
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 ofthe Act where applicable and details ofsuch transactions have been disclosed in
the financialstatements as required by the applicable lnd A5.

(a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to have an internal audit system as per the
provisions of the Act. However, d uring the year, the company has introduced interna I audit
system and the internal audit system is adequate and commensurate with the size and

nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company durlng the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our
audit procedures.

According to the information and expla nations given to us and based on our examination of the
records ofthe Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act,

2013 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) ln our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the
Reserve Bank of lndia Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) ln our opinion, the company is not a core investment company and there is no core

investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core lnvestment Companies

(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reportin8 under clause 3(xvi)(c) and

3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and in

the immediately preceding financial year.

2a
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Brahmayp co.
Chartered Accountants

(xviii)

(xix )

(xx)

Place: Chennai
Date: 13'h May 2024

48, Masilamani Road. Balaji Nagar,

Royapettah, Chennai - 600 0'14. lndia

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets

and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe audit report
indicating that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,

however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability ofthe Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year

from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

As per information and explanations given to us, Since the threshold limit as specified by section

135 (1) of the companies Act, 2013 is not met, the CSR provisions are not applicable to the
company during the current financial year. and accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) (a) and

(b) ofthe Order is not appllcable.

For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 000 1S

A N
R.Nagendra
Pa rtne r

d

Membership number: 203377

u orr,r: l,\tpll! 7 6 K cAuhl2?96
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Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE . "B" TO AUDITORS' REPORT
Referred to in paragraph 7.2 (g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements, of our
report of even date

Report on the lnternal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Ultramarine Speciality chemicals Limited ("the Company") as of 31't March 2024 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Dlrectors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
("Guidance Note") issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("lCAl"). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness ofthe accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls

Our responsibility is to express an opinlon on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our a udit. We conducted our audit in accorda nce with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, both issued by the lCAl. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal flnancial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in

all material respects.

Our audit involves performing proceduies to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internalfinancial controls system with reference to
financial statements

3

4

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji Nagar,

Royapettah, Chennai - 600 014. lndia
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Chartered Accountants

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of flnancial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dlspositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts.and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accorda nce with authorisations of ma nagement and d irectors of the com pany; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,

or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating
effectively as at 31't Match,2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of lndia ("the Guidance
Note").

For BRAHMAYYA & CO.,

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 0005115

A N.
R.Nagendra
Pa rtne r
Membership number: 203377

7

8

Place: Chen nai

Date: 13th May 2024

48, Masilamani Road, Balaji NagaI

Royapettah, chennai - 600 ol4. lndia

uot trt : 2[?033?? BKc-quv]2?q6

t

CHENNAI
INOIA

1 :+91- 044 - 2813 1128 I 38 I 48 I 58

E :mail@brahmayya.com I www.brahmayya.com



V
a

Ultramarine 5p€cialty Chemicals Limir€d
Balance She€t as at 31st March,2024

5. No Particulars
Note

31st March 2024 31st March 2023

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

assm
ilon<uaaent ass€ts
(a) Property, Pbnt and Equipment

{b)Capltalworkin progress
(c) Oth€r lntangible Assets
(d ) Fina.cial Assets

(i) lnvestments
(il) Loans

(iii) Other financia I assets

{e) Oeferred tax ass€t

(0 Other non-current atsets

Cuar€nt a5s€t5

(a) lnventories
(b) FinancialArsets

(i) lnvestments
(il) Trade receivables

{iii)Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances otherlhan cash and cash equivalents
(v) Loans

(vi) Other financial assets
(c) Current Tax Ass€ts (Net)

(d) Other current assets

TotalAssets

EQUITY AND TIASITITIES

Equity
(a)Equity Share capital
(b)Other Equity

TIABILINES

Non<urrent liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i)Borrowings
(ii)Lea5e liabilities
(jii) Other financia I liabilities

(b) Provisions
(c)Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Cur]€nt ll.bllities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borowings

{ii) Trade payables

TotaloutstandinS du€s ofmicro enterprises and small

enterprises

Tot.l outstanding dues ofcreditors otherthan micro

enterprises and small enterprises
(iii) Leaseliabilities
(iv) Other financial lia bilaties

(b) othercfient liabilities
(c) Provisbth

Total Equity and Liabilities

4
4
5

5

7

8

9

10

11

t2
13

14

15

17

18

19

20

7

21

22

23

24

25

9,605.49
2,705.18

0.73

33.05

110.07

8,120.82
888.94

1.68

13.65

746.17

12,454.63

1,027.59

457.67

ts7.47

0.29

8.6s

1,217.92

9,771.26

838.61

778.4A

7n.77
7.65

o.29
5.31

1,024.34

2,869.59 2,166.39

15,324.22 71,337.65

4,708.33
1,194.39

3,325.00

597.80

5,902.72

7,414.27

68.91

5.84

146.24

3,922.40

6,427.63

6.83

2.47

64.27

7,535.26

900,07

210.05

355.03

za!!t
32.95

3.80

6,501.14

434.24

14.00

110.55

336.96

15.88

2.08

L746.24 9r3.71

15,324.72 11,337.65

Th€ accompanying not€s form an int€gral part oflhe financialstatements

A5 perour r€pon oreven date attached

For Erahmayya &Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Retn. No.000511S

torand on b€half o, Board oI Ditectors

^
R

^I
mpa

R,NAGENDRA T PARTHASARATHY V SHARATHRAM

Dlrector
OIN:084,t4583Membe15hip No.203377

Pla(e:Ch€nn.i
Date :13th May 2024

N :07121058

As at
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Ulramarine Specialty Chemicals Llmited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31rt March, 2024

I in Lakhs

S. No Particulars Note No.
Year ended 31st

March 2024

Year ended 3lst March
2023

I

I
t

VI

v

v

tx

x

xt

x

x t

Revenue From Operations
Other lncome

Total Income (l+ll)

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in lnventories of Finished goods and work-in-progress

Power and Fuel

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses (lV)

Prorit belore exceptional items (lll-lV)

Exceptional items

Profit befor€ tax (V+Vl)

Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
(3) lncome tax expense relating to prior years

PrqIit for the period (Vll-Vlll)

Other Comprehenslve lncome
A (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

A (ii) lncome tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

B (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or Ioss

B (ii) lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or
loss

Total other comprehensive income (A (i - ii) + B(i - ii))

Total comprehensive income for the period (lX + Xl)

Earnings per equity share of face value of 1 10 each
Weighted average number of shares for calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share
(1) Basic

(2)Diluted

26

27

28

29

30

31

4

?2

3,754,U
19.69

1,515.02

3.50

3,784.53

758,t7

(1e7.0s)

557.50

307.58

447,72

574.01

859.95

1,518.62

483.70

(543.1s)

315.05

144.49

209.14

298.88

345,26

3,321.38 1,253.38

463.15 365.24

463.15 355.24

(81.95) 164.27]-

381.19 300.97

lt.27l (0.07)

lt.27l (0.07)

379.92 300.90

3,72,47,803

r,02
t,o2

2,77,52,95A

1.11

1.11

The accompanying not€s form an integral part of th€ finan€ial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For Brahmayya & Co

Chartered Acaountants

tirm Regn. No.0005115

tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

R'n, t nan

R.NAGEND

Partner
RASAO TA PARTHASARATHY V BHARATHRAM

Oiredor
DIN :08444583

ctor
Membership Nq.203377
Plaae: chennai
Date : 13th May 2024
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37.50
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(0.15'

1,378.11 {408.96}

(3,895.9r) 13,755.55)

{3,395.91} It,766.s5)

l,@0.00
,00.00
l,47.@

{892.3r}
L29t.00
(28r.25'
(til..91)
po.0o)

l4r7.90)

1,290,00

380.@
955.00

1,:t5Z-00

229.47
70-oo

1171.15)

2,564-55
'r,105.72

45,75 159,79)

11l.lrt
0.37

1a1.47
0.01

111.71 tl1.5{)

157.35
0.11

!11.:t4
0.37

lsl.41 111,71

Iho a.6hP.nyrna nor.5lo.a.n l.t.8ral p.rt ol u. fn.n.lal 3tat.nenB
Ar Per our r.po.t ol.t.n d.t. .tt .hed

Flrm ie8n. t{o.0oo5tls

fo..nd on behafofEo.rd ololre.toE

,&";-N;
I)

4^J

CHENNAI
INOIA

M.mbe.rhlp No.203377

5-

T

:07121058

THY ."J*"
DIN | 08444541

st1

V



8hE
B8d 8

E8
P3
jj

::: s3
8A 3

E

E

g

E

E

E

E

a

E Bg
e-Eg

4;66

(, 
"\\E-!r-*ji

5r
iz iiEg
El!

I

!

1 ac
Es!8E::q
t::z
iET 9i{ E t:,!6t

E

t

I

E

B

'1.

iz

:t6-
6 r9r€ !: tsEgaE

2

!

d
qi n

:

a

s

a

iiE
;E

s eg
R3
.Jd

e
8

E
8

s8
8A

I

!ff
;!

!!
t> ii
6b !

:*fli
:: a!i i E!

I:

!- n:
ER :.!

EiS l -.'! i! < i
"";!:;25'itp;i
; g;; !:
q:E,EEE
i3:Ett

IEBU!C
E !E i i i

si

r:
;;
E!
ll r*c n
6; !
!-{fli
:: a!
-E i t!

E
3

E
I

P^

ril
,E IF !
3RE: {
iE:i e E

i!=siE3
f :'! n;:qE;;EE
S:: . H E

EiE53i?I!Ei;€t6r6,
g

3

;EE
Edg

iet

8E

! !:
.r{ i

E
8

8
d E.E E

!
E* *
<E:

:a
.EE
FE5

.!i!

!:!
1

qB
I

I

P

E!-E.3E-;E
ii.!ii;-!rEtratrE€aJEIisal

! E i E!; i

:

,9

z5
!!

Y!B:

EE
!!

-t t-\-r,

I
3



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31,2024

All amounts are in INR unless otherwise stated

1 General lnformation
Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited (the 'Company') is a Public Limited Company domiciled in lndia,

incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. applicable in lndia. The Company was incorporated

with an objective of manufacturing and selling pigments. The registered office ofthe Company is located at No.556,

Vanagaram Road, Ambattur, Chennai.

The Holding Company has committed an investment to an extent of 14,548 lakhs in the form of Equity shares,

Preference shares and Term loan to meet out the ca pacity expa nsion project of Pigments. Out of this commitment
13,298 lakhs have been funded during the year and balance of t1,250 lakhs will be funded in next year.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with lndian Accounting Standards (lnd AS), under
historical cost convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values, as per the companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) notified under Section 133

of the Com panies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') a nd other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details ofthe Company's Material accounting policies are included in Note 3

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in lndian Rupees (lNR), which is also the Company's functlonal currency.

Current and non-current classifi cation:
All assets a nd liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Com pany's normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the
acquisition ofassets for processlng and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following:
l.certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at the fair value
2. Defined benefit plans - Plan assets measured at fair value.

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with lnd AS requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets a nd liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year.
Actual results could differ from these estlmates. Estimates and underlying assumptions and judgements are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and
future periods.

z.
A.

B

c.

D

E

Jrnn^,
!ftol^

6

The financial statements were approved at the meeting of Board of directors held on May t3,2024.
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Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the nnancial statements for the period ended March 3L,2024

ln the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following estimates,

assumptions and judgments, which have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financialstatements:

Property, plant and equipment and lntangible assets

The Company has estimated the useful lives of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated
usage of the assets, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. Management believes
that assigned useful lives are reasonable. The Company reviews the carryin8 amount of property, plant and

equipment at the end of each balance sheet date. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are

determined by the management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each

financial year end. This re-assessment may result in change of depreciation expense in future periods.

Contingencies and Provisions

Management assesses and estimates the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of
contingencies/claim/litigations agalnst the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters
with accuracy.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
lnformation about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment in the year ending 31't March 2024 is included ln the following notes:
- Note 33- recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the likelihood

and magnitude of an outflow of resources;
- Note 34 - measurement of defined beneflt obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

3. Material accounting policy information

3.1 Property, Plant, and Equipment: (PPE)

lnitial Recognition

Company's Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at the cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses lf any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment includes its
purchase price (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes,
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management, borrowing costs on qualifying assets on qualifying assets and
asset retirement costs.

lf significa nt parts of an item of property, plant a nd equipment have different useful Iives, then they are accounted
for, as separate items (major components) of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Any gains or losses on their disposal, determined by comparing sales proceeds with carrying amount, are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent expenditure:
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and expenditure meet the recognition criteria.
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Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31,2024

3.2

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided using the straight-line method based on the useful life

and in the manner prescribed in Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect ofthe following
categories of assets, where the useful life of the property, plant and equipment have been determined by the
Management based on the technical assessment/eva luatio n:

Category of property, plant and
Equipment

Useful Life in Years

As per Schedule ll As per Company's Assessment

Plant & Equipment 72-40 5-20
Computer Equipment 3

lndividual assets costing less than t 10,000/- are fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted if
appropriate, with the effect of changes in estimate of useful life of those assets being accounted on prospective

basis. Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the manaBement believes that its estimates of useful
lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Derecognition:
An item of plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the asset is recognized in the profit or loss in

the year the asset is derecognized.

lntangible Assets:
lnitial Recognition
lntangible assets acquired separately are initially measured at cost. lntangible assets are recognized if and only if,
it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and the
cost ofthe asset can be measured reliably.

Cost of separately acquired intangible assets includes its purchase price (after deducting trade discounts and
rebates), import duties & non-refundable purchase taxes, any costs directly attributable to preparing the asset for
its intended use.

Subsequent measurement and Amortization
(i) lntanBible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.
(ii) lntangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis as under:

a. Software costing up to < 25,000/- is amortised out in the year of acquisition. Other Software
acquired is amortised over its estimated useful life of 3 years;

b. lntellectual Property is amortised over its estimated useful life of 2 years.
The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at each Balance Sheet
date, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition of intangible assets

An lntangible asset is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
ng from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference betweendisposal. Gains or losses arisl
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Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2024

the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
when the asset is de-recognized.

3.3 lmpairment ofTangible and lntangible assets

The Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired at each balance sheet date.
lf any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. lf such recoverable
amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. lf at the balance sheet date there is an
indication that the previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and
the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of a mortized historical cost impaired earlier.
Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

3,4 Foreign currency transactions and balances:

lnitial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions (other than advance receipt or payment of forelgn currency) are recorded using the
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign
currency transactions settled during the year are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The foreign
currency transactions received or paid in advance are accounted at the date of receipt or payment of foreign
cu rrency.

Translation:
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are translated using
the foreiBn exchange rates as at the balance sheet date. The resultant exchange differences are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss

Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are carried at historicalcost are not translated.

Forward exchange contracts entered into to hedge and manage foreign currency exposures relating to highly
probable transactions or firm commitments are marked mark to market and resulting gains or losses are recorded
in the statement of profit and loss.

3.5 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and initial measurement:
A financial asset or financial liability other than those items that are not at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPt)

is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

The trade receivables are recognized when right to consideration ls established on transfer of control of goods and

services and on fulfilment of performance obligation related to goods and services.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Classifi cation and subsequent measurement:

31
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Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 3L,2024

Financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- Amortised cost or
- Fair value through profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except In the period, the Company

changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated

as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows; and
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

All financial assets that do not meet the criteria for measurement at amortized cost are measured at FWPL. This

includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or are measured at FWPL, if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Subse uent measurement and ains and losses:

Financial assets at FVTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

including any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financialassets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment
losses. lnterest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is

recognized in profit or loss.

lmpairment
The Company recognizes loss allowances uslng the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financlal assets and
unbilled revenues which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables and unbilled
revenues with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting
date to the amount that is required to be recoBnized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in statement of
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FWPL. A financial liability is classified as
measured at FWPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial llabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. lnterest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.
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Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 3L'2024

Derecognition:

Financial assets:
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset

expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the fina ncial asset a re transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially allofthe risks and rewards ofownership and does not retain controlofthe financialasset.
lf the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities:
The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.
The Company also derecognlzes a financial liabllity when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. ln this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is

recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the fina ncial liability extinguished and the
new financial liability wlth modifled terms is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and

only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends elther to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liabiliv simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedte accounting:
The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk exposures. Derivatives are
initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and
changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

3.6 lnventories:
lnventories are valued on the principle laid down by lnd AS 2 "lnventories" on the basis given below:

3.7 Cash and cash equivalents:
The Company considers all highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents
conslst of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Raw Materials, Stores & Spares (that are not
capitalized), Fuel and Packing Material

Lower of cost (determined on weighted average basis)
and net rea liza ble value.

Work-in-Progress

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
direct materials, labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity.
Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes
direct materials, labour, a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating
ca pacity
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Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended Nlarch 31,2024

3.8 Taxation:
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax charge or credit.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statement and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognized for all deductible temporary dlfferences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognized of the temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor accounting profit.

Where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are recognized on
assessment of reasonable certainty about realization of such assets.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance
Sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to the
taxes on income levied by same governing taxation laws.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset

to be recovered.

3.9 Revenue

The Company's revenue was primarily comprised of sale of inorganic pigments & complex inorganic colour
pigments.

Revenue is measured based on the transactlon price after netting trade discounts, volume discounts, sales returns
and goods and service tax excluding the estimates ofvariable consideration that is allocated to that performance

obligation. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to
customers.

Revenue from contract with customers is reco8nised when the Company satisfies performance obligation by

transferring promised goods and services to the customer. Performance obligations are satisfied at a point of time.
Performance obligations are said to be satisfled at a point of time when the customer obtains controls ofthe goods

/ services rendered.

Export benefits:

4L

Current Tax:
Current Tax is determined as the amount of income tax payable to the taxation authoritles in respect of taxable
income for the period.
The Company's current tax is calculated using a pplicable tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicats Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31,2024

The benefit accrued under Remission of Duties and Taxes on Export Products (RoDTEP) Scheme, Duty Drawback
Scheme as per the Export and lmport Policy in respect of exports made under the said Schemes is accounted on
an accrual basis and is included under the head "revenue from operations" as'Export lncentives'. Export benefits
available under prevalent schemes are recognized in the year when the right to receive credit as per the terms of
the scheme is established in respect of exports made and are accounted to the extent there is no significant
uncertainty about the measurability and ultimate utilization/ realization of such duty credit.

lnterest income:
lnterest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly dlscounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Sale of Scrap

Revenue from sale of scrap is recognized on sale

3.10 EmployeeBenefits:

Defined contribution plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into
a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to recognized provident funds and approved superannuation schemes which are defined
contribution plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense and charged to the statement of profit and
loss as and when the services are received from the employees.

Defined benefit plans:

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company's
net obligation In respect of gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, and certaln other defined benefit plans

ls calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefits that the employees have earned
in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

An unrecognized past service costs and the fairvalue ofany plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield

at the reporting date on risk free government bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Company's obligations. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit
method. ln case of funded defined benefit plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross

obligation under the defined benefit plans, to recognize the obllgation on net basis.

Retirement and other employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentive, paid annual leave, bonus, leave travel
assistance, medical allowance, contribution to provident fund and superannuation etc. recognized as actual

amounts due in period in which the employee renders the related services.
(i) A retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions

are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year when the contribution to the fund accrues.

There are no obligations other than the contributlon payable to the recognized Provident Fund.

(ii) Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation on
projected unit credit method made at the end of each financial year. The Company has established a

gratuity trust to provide gratuity benefit through annual contributions to a Gratuity trust which in turn
contributes to Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia (LlC). Under this plan, the settlement obligation remains
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Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31,2O24

with the Gratuity trust. Life lnsurance Corporation of lndia administers the plan and determines the
contribution premium required to be paid by the trust.

(iii) Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarialvaluation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end.

3.11 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions:
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past

event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present

obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. lf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax

rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. when discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a

third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and

the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities:
A contingent llability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a

present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but

discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed for: -

(i) possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the

Company, or

(ii) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets:

44

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
and the resultant actuarial gains/(losses) are recognized immediately in the statement of other comprehensive
income.



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the period ended March 31,2024

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the flnancial statements, when an inflow of economic
benefits is probable.

3.t2 Borrowing costs:
Borrowing costs worked out are determined on effective interest rate, directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or productlon of qualifying assets, that necessarily take a substantial period to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until the assets are substa ntially ready for their intended
use or 5ale.

lnterest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing cost eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.13 Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) from continuing operations and the tota I profit/
(loss) attributable to equity shareholders (after deductinB attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period.

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the profit/(loss) from continuing operations and the total profit/(loss)

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period after
adjusting the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.14 Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement is prepared using "indirect method" set out in lnd AS 7 on "Cash Flow Statement" and

presents the cash flows during the period by operating, investing and financing activities of the Company.

3.15 Events after reporting date
Where events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period, the impact of such events is adjusted within the Standalone Financial Statements.

Non Adjusting events after the Balance Sheet date which are material in size or nature are disclosed separately in

the Standalone Financial Statements.

3.15 Segment Reporting
ln accordance with lnd AS 108, Operating Segments, the company identified manufacturing of chemicals as the

only reportable segment.

3.17 Standards issued but not yet effective
Ministry of corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under

Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 37,2024,
MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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4 Property Plant and Equipment

(iii) Break up ol.epital work ln progress

t in Lakhs

Particulars
31st Ma,.h

2024
31st March

2023
Tanglble Arets under Construdioo ln the
nature of:
Land

Buildlngs
Plant & Ma.hlnery

Proiect Erpenditure - Di.ect
Professional & Consultancy charges

Finance cost (Net ofcapitalized)
Other direct expenses

22.32
3.90

101.14
20.83

753.62

3,00
7.63
2.72

Total 2,705.24 888.94

Particulars l,rnd Building
Plant &

Machinery
Computea

Equipments
Offi.e Equipment

Fuhiture &
Fixtures

Total
Capital Work-in

progress

Gross 8lo(k:
Balance as at 01-04-2022 972-23 1.08 l-12 1.72 975.55 5,445.59

Additions
Disposals / Adjustments

2,320.85 5,O49.4L 27.69 3.41 1,445.05

Balance as at 31{3-2023 912-23 2,320.85 5,049.41 22-77 4.S3 50.81 8,420.60 888.94

Additions
Disposals / Adjustments

513.26 629.87 190.28 3.22 4.28 16.83 2,os7.74

Balance as at 31-03-2024 1,58S.49 2,9sO.72 s,839.69 2S.99 8.81 67 -64 LO,478.34 2,705-28

Aaaumulated depreciation:
Balan.e as at 01-04-2022 0.23 0.32 0.16 0.7L

Charge for the year (refer note (ii))

Other Adjustments

58.30 227.20 2.90 2.03 4.64

Balance as at 31-03-2023 s8.30 227 -20 3.13 2.35 8.80 299.78

Charge for the year (refer note (ii))

Other Adjustments

112.98 434.76 11.85 3.10 10.38 573.O7

Balance as at 31-03-2024 t7t.28 661.96 14.98 5.45 19.18 872.85

Net carrying amount:
As at 31{3-2023 972-23 2,262-55 4,822-2t 19.64 2.18 42,O7 8,120.82

As at 31-03-2024 1,585.49 2,779-44 5,t77.73 11.01 3.36 48.46 9,605.49

Note: (i)The Company acquiied the land in the lndustrial Parlf Naldupet, Andhra Pradesh and is in possession ol land and retistered the sale agreement forthe said land. ln

terms of policy, the company is entitled to use the land and right to offer the land as seaurlty. The company has already aomm€naed commeralal production durint ruly, 2022.

The title to the sald land shall be retistered in the name orthe.ompany subrect to fulfilment ofother terms and conditlons.

(ii) Depreciatlon capltalised during the year NlL (previous year t 0,36 lakhs)

tNOLA

Y !

{ in Lakhs

49.69

299.07

473.O2

1,806.04



F.Y.2023-24 { in Lakhs

cwtP

Amount in CwlP for a period of

Less than 1

year
1-2 years 2-3 years

More
than 3
years

Total

Projects in progress:

Pigments

Proiects temporarily suspended

2,483.80 221.48 2,705.28

Total 2,443.4O 221.48 2,705.24

4.1 CwlP a schedule

4.2 CWIP ose on is overdue or has exceeded its cost red to its o nal lan

F.Y.2022-23 < in Lakhs
Amount in CWIP for a period of

Less than 1
year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More
than 3
years

Total

888.94 888.94

888.94 888.94

To be completed in

Less than I
year

1-2 years 2-3 years
More
than 3
y€ars

Total

--N--t

To be completed in

Less than I
year

2-3 years
More

than 3
years

Total
cwtP

Total

tNOIA

1-2 years



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals [imited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2024

5 Other intangible assets

t in takhs
Particulars Computer Software

Gross Block:

Balance as at 01-04-2022

Additions
Disposals / Adjustments
Balance as at 31-03-2023

1.86

1.86

Additions
Dis posa ls / Adjustments
Balance as at 31-03-2024

(0.00)

1.85

Accumulated Amortisation :

Balance as at 01-04-2022

Charge for the year

Other Adjustments

Balance as at 31-03-2023

0.18

0.18

Charge for the year

Other Adjustments
Balance as at 31-03-2024

0.94

1.13

Net carrying amount:

As at 31-03-2023

As at 31-03-2024

1.68

o.73

4s



{ in Lakhs

S. No Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2024 3lst Mar 2023
6 Other Financial Assets - Non - Current

Unsecured, Considered Good
Security deposit 33.06
Total 33.05 13.65

< in Lakhs

< in Lakhs

S. No Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2024 3lst Mar 2023
7 Deferred tax liability (net)

Deferred tax liability:
0epreciation

Deferred tax assets:

Unabsorbed business loss

Unabsorbed depreciation
Preliminary Expense u/s 35D

Expense disallowed u/s 438
- 8onus
- Leave Encashment
- Dues to MSME

259.07 r48.4t
259.O7 t48.4L

102.38

5.17

2.O9

1.65

1.00

74.55

7.62

t.20
o,77

112.83 a4.M

Total 746.24 64,27

S. No Particulars

As at

31st Mar 2024 3lst Mar 2023

8 Other Non - Current Assets

Unsecured, Consldered Good

capital Advances

Less: Provision for capital Advances

lncome taxes (Net)

Export lncentives Receivable

Prepaid expenses

109.9s
(10.s4)

2.13
1.63

6.90

135.59

o.73

9.85

Total 146.17

S. No Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2024 3lst Mar 2023

9 lnventories
Raw materials and components
Fuel

Packing Material
Stores & spares

Work in progress

Finished goods

Finished goods in Transit

106.79
3.65

10.12

54.83
483.59

243.80
LZ4.8L

7L5.7 4

3.60
6.73

57 .44

444.64

!44.77
66.29

Total 7,027.59 838.61

14

13.65
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Notes to financial statements for the quarter ended 3lst M erch,2024

I in Lakhs

I

110.07

tt



Ultramarine Sp€cialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to financial statements for the quarter ended 31st March, 202/t

< in Lakhs

S. No Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2024
31st Mar

2023
10 Trade Receivables

- Considered good - secured

- Considered good - Unsecured

- Having significant increase in Credit Risk

- Credit impaired

Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss

778.48

437.67 17a.48

Total 457.67 178.48
*Amount receivable from Holding Company 1101.13 Lakhs (Previous yeat Nil)

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31.03.2024

Trade Receivables ageint schedule as at 31,03.2023

< in Lakhs

Particulars Not Oue

Outstanding for following periods from due
date of payment

6 months - 1
year

t-2
year5

2-3
years

More
than 3
years

Total

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - significant increase in Credit Risk

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables - signifi€ant increase in credit Risk

457 .61 0.06 457.67

Total 0.05 457.67

)\s

Particulars Not Due

Outstandlng for following periods from no
due date of payment

6 months - 1
year

7-2
years

2-1
years

More
than 3
years

Total

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - significant increase in Credit Risk

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Di5puted Trade Receivables - significant increase in Credit Risk

178.48 174.48

Total 778.48 178.48

!

457.67

< in Lakhs

457.61

NI



Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes to financial statements for the quarter ended 31st March, 2024

t in [akhs

t in Lakhs

S, No Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2024

t2 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Margin money with banks* 7 .65

Total 7 .65
+ Under Lien to avail Letter of Credit facilities.

< in Lakhs

S. No Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
13 Loans

Loans & Advances to Employees
- Considered good - Unsecured 0.29 o.29

0.29 0.29

S. No
As at

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

11 Cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
(i) Cash on hand
(ii) Bala nces with banks

ln current accounts

0.11

t57 .36

0.37

rLt.34

Total L57.47 111.71

st

Particulars

31st Mar 2023

Total



S. No Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

t4 Other Financial Assets - Current
lnterest accrued on Deposits

Deposits for leased premises

Balance with Gratuity Fund (Net)

1.40

1.31

5.94

0.6s
1.31

3.35

Total 8.6s 5.31

t in [akhs

{ in Lakhs

As at
S. No Pa rticulars

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
15 Other Current Assets

Advances other than capital advances:
Balance with GST & Customs

GST Refund Receivable on Export

Advance to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Export incentives receivable - duty free scrips

986.20
187.69

77.39

Lt.2t
15.43

993.24

L4.25

7 .46

9.39

Total r,2L7.92 I,024.34I

c*,tlNAl
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Uliramarine SpeaialtyChemiaals Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31rt March, 2024

{ In Lakhs

S. No Partiaulars
As at

3lst Mar 2024 31sl Mar 2023

16 Share capital

Authorised
S,20.0O,O0O (31st March 2023: 3,4,0O,O0O) Equity Shares oft 10/- each

3,25,000 ( 31st March 2023 : 3,25,000) Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of
I 1,000/- each carryinS coupon rate of 7.5%

38,000 { 31st Mar.h 2023 :38,000) Non Cumulatlve Convertible Preference shares of<
1,@0/- each carrying.oupon rate of 7.5%

lssued, subs.rlbed and fully pald'up shares

4,70,83,333 (31st March 2023: 3,32,50,000) EquityShares of110/- each fullypaidup

2,90,000 (31st March 2023- 2,20,000) Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of
I 1,000/- each carrying coupon rate of 7.5%

38,000 ( 31st March 2023- 38,000 ) Non Cumulative Optionally Convenible Preference

shares of{ 1,000/- each carrying coupon rate of 7.5%

[ess: Reclassification of Preference Share Capital as Non Current Financial Liability (Refer

Note 18)

5,200.00

3,2s0.00

380.00

3,540.00

3,250.00

380.00

8,830.00 1.270.OO

4,708.33

2,900.00

380.00

3,325.00

2,200.00

380.00

7,988.33 5,905.00

(3,280,00) (2,s80.00)

Total 708.33 325.00

16.1 Reconcillation of number of shares outstanding at the betinnint and end ol the year
Authorised share capital: No. of shares

Equity Share6 of I 10

each

Non Cumulative
Redeemable

Pteference 5hares

oI 11,000/- each

Non Cumulative
optionally

Convertible
Prefetenae shares

oI11,000/- each

Balan.e as at lst April 2022

Add / (tess): Changes during the year

Balan.e as at 3lst March,2023

000

1,43,00,000 3 000
000 000 38,000

Less ch dur the 1,55,00,000
galance a5 at 31st Mar, 2024 5,20,00,000 3,25,000 38,000

lssued, Subscribed and Paid up share capital: No. of shares

Equity Shares o{ { 10

eaah

Non Cumulative
Redeemable

Prererence shares

ol 11,000/- each

Non Cumulative
Optlonally

Convertlble
Prelerence shares
ol11,0001- each

Balance as at 1st April 2022

Add / (Less)r Changes durinB the year
galance as at 31st March,2023

2, 10 000 2 20,000

1,1 000 000

3,32,50,0&) 2,20,000 38,000

^dd 
/ Less Chan durin the 1,38,33,333 70,000I

38,000Bal.nce as at 31st Mar,2024 4,70,83,333 2,90,000

r1

1l



16.2 l€rms/dthB.tt .h.d ro sharcs
(alEquitysh.rur

(i) Ihe Equity shares are having a parvalue of t 10/- and each hold€r of equity 5hare.ls enllled to on€ voie Per thare

(ii) rn th€ event ofliquid.rion ofthe Company, th€ holders of equity sh.res willbe entltled to receive any of th€ remainin8 assets of the

Company, aft€r dinribution of all pr€ferential amount. ThE dittribution willbe p.oportio.at€ to the number of equity shares held by th€

(b) Non cumulativ. Red€cmable PreLr.nc. shar€s (ltcRPs)

(i) The N on Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares are havin8 a par value of I 1,000/-

(ii) fi€ Holderol(caPs shallbe enlitledto dividend of7.5 %p€r annum (non cumulative) on th€ facev.lueof NCRPS

(iii)I}l€ Redemptio. rhallbefrom FY 2027-28 {3 Yearly instalments}or such oths peiod.s m.y be a8reed mutually

{c) Non cumulatlv. optlonally conrcnlbl. Pret€r.nce sharc5 (NcocPs)
(i) The Non Cumulative Optionally Convertibl€ Pref€r€nce shares are having a par valu€ of I 1,000/-

{ii) The Holder of NCOCPS shall be entitled to dividend of 7.5 % per annum {non cum ulative) on the fac€ valu€ of NCOCPS

(iii)It€ NCOCPSthallbe redeem€d or conve.ted (as mutually agreedlaft€r the rin.ncial Yea. 2027-28 or such other period.s may be

aEreed mutually b€twe€n boththe paniei.

Number of tulry pald-

on 31rt M.r 23

Ult.ama.ine & Pitmenrs Umited - Holdint Company
As at3lst March, 2024' 100% (31st March 2073-1.00%)

4,7q85,331

more than 5% rharet16.3 DEtail. df.harcholdEE holdi

3,12,50,000

Details of shareholdln8 ot promoter'

As at 31et Mar 202a A5.t3rst Mar 202!

4,70,83,333 r00% 3,32,50,000 100% a%

Equitysharet
Ultramarine& Pitm€nbLimited-HoldinsCompany
Tot l 4,70,83,333 100% !,32,50,000 et

A5 at 31st Mar2023 % Ch.nt€

Non Cumul.tlve 8€d€!mable Preference rharesof 11,000/- each
Ultram.rine & Phments Umited " Holdinx Comoanv 2,90,000 100% 2,20,000 100%

e4

A5 .t 31st Mar2024

70(x2,90.000 2,20,000

as at 315t Mar2023

lou

38,000 100% 38,000 ov" 100%

Non Cu mulatlve Optlo.ally Convetlbl€ Pr.ference shar.s of 11,000/- ea.h
Ultramarine & Pigmenti Limited - BoldanE Company

!8,000 t00,( 38,000 e4

16.4

70v,4

% Ch.nt.
durintth.

cH4*Ar
INOIA

5I

% ofTot lSh.ret

lon

f 10016

%Ch.nge
duriqth.



t in Lakhs

S. No Particulars
As at

3lst Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
77 Other Equity

Share Application Money Pending allotment
Securities Premium (Refer Note 17.1)
Generalreserve
Retained Earnings
Other Comprehensive lncome - Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities

50.00
466.67

679.06
(1.34)

300.00

297.87
(0.07)

Total 1,194.39 597.80

t7.7 During the year company has issued 93,33,333 lakhs equity shares having face value of Rs.l0/- each at premium of Rs.5 per share.

< in Lakhs
As at

31st Mar 2023
S. No Particulars

31st Mar 2024
18 Borrowings - Non-current

Secured
Term Loan from Banks (Refer note 18.1, 18.2 and 18.3)

Less: Current maturity of borrowings

Unsecured
Term loan from Holding company (Refer note 18.4)

Less: Current maturity of borrowings

Financial Liabilities:

2,90,000 (220,000) 7.50% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share capital (Refer

note 18.5)

38,000 (38,000)7.50% Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Share capital
(Refer note 18.6)

2,900.00

380.00

3,493.7s

i.s94.77],

1,459.63

1224.94)

2,477.O7

1722.92)

1,505.00
(11.46)

74.277 7.636Total

18.1
Paripasu first ranking charge by way of deposit of title deeds of freehold land having carrying cost of 1972.24 Lakhs of the company

situated at Plot No.59A 14.59 Acres of Land in lndustrial Estate, Menakurin favour of Axis Bankand HSBCBank.

The company has availed term loan of < 2250 Lakhs from Axis Bank, read with note 18.1, the loan is secured by hypothecation of

movable fixed assets and current assets of the company and charge has been created for fixed and current assets. Theloan carries

interest rate in the range of 6.75% to 9.25% p.a and has a moratorium period of 24 months and is repayable in 16 quarterly instalments

beginning from Odober, 2023.

18.3

The company availed term loan of< 1,525 Lakhsby HSBC Bank, read with note 18.1Theloan is secured by hypothecation of movable

fixed assets and current assets of the company and charge has been created for fixed and current assets. The loan carries interest rate in

the range of 8.34% to 8.82 % 9.a and has a moratorium period of 24 months and is repayable in 48 monthly instalments beginning from

Ju^e,2024.

78.4

The company has availed a term loan of { 2,042 Lakhs out of sanctioned term loan of I 2,042 Lakhs by the holding company, carrying

interest rate in the range of 6.75% to 9.25% p.a with 2 years of moratorium from the last disbursement amount and is repayable in 16

quarterly instalments beginning from the month of March,2024.
During the year, <548 Lakhs was prepaid to the holding company due to change in Financial structure of the proiects

Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share capital (NCRPS) shall be entitled to dividend of 7.5 % per annum (non cumulative). The

NCRPS shall be redeemed beginning from the Financial Year 2027-28 in 3 Yearly instalments or such other period as may be agreed

mutually between both the parties. No dividend was recommended and declared during the year.

18.6

Non Cumulative Optionally Convertible Preference Share Capital (NCOCPS) shall be entitled to dividend of 7.5 % per annum (non

cumulative). The NCOCPS shall be redeemed or converted (as mutually agreed) after financial year 2027-28 or such other period as may

be agreed mutually between both the parties. No dividend was recommended and declared during the year.

55

2,200.o0

380.00

18.5

I



t in Lakhs

S. No Particulars
As at

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

Other financial liabilities - Non Current
Retention money payable 68.91 6.83

Total 68.91 5.83

I in takhs

5. No Paniculars
As at

31st Mar 2024 3lst Mar 2023

20 Provisions - Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 5.84 2.4L

Total 5.84 2.47

< in Lakhs

S. No Paniculars
As at

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

27 Borrowings - Current

secured

Term Loan from Banks - Current maturities of borrowings (Refer note 18)

Working capital loan from a Bank (Refer Note 21.2)

UnSecured

Term Loan from Holding Company - Current maturities of borrowings (Refer note 18)

Working Capital - Bridge loan from holding company

224.94

122.92

229.87

17.46

70.00

Total 900.07 434.25

27.1

The Company has availed credit facilities (both fund based and non-fund based) from a Bank (Axis Bank-Rs.1 Crores) and are secured by

first charge on hypothecation of stocks (raw materials and finished goods) and book debts ofthe company and second charge on fixed

assets including land and building. However, no amount is outstanding (fund based and non fund based) as on 31st M arch,2024.

27.2
The Company has availed credit facilities (both fund based and non-fund based) from a Bank (HSBC Eank-Rs.5 Crores) and are secured by

charge on hypothecation of stocks (raw materials and finished goods) and book debts of the company.

l in Lakhs

S. No Padiculars
As at

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

22 Trade Payables
Trade payables:
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprises

210.05

356.03

14.00

110.55

Total 566.08 124.55

22.L Amounts payable to Holding Company I 151.02 Lakhs I PY I 7,10 Lakhs

22.2 MSME Creditors include Capital creditors of I 181.45 Lakhs (PY 17.13 takhs)

cH6tlAl
tuglA

34

19

594.17

80.96



outstirdlni for followlnt periodr |rom d!. d.l. ol p.yment

22.7

lrdc p.t.bles a8lln! r.h.dol. lo. the yca, end.d lrrt M.r 4024

lt) MsME
(ll)oth.R
liii) DitDuted ducs - MsME
llvl Dkouted due! - orh.rt

,a.36
236.60

135.69
LLa.77 0.56 0.10

210.0s
156.01

310.96 254,46 0.56 566.08

27.2
lr.d! p.y.blB .8!lna rd.rlul. to. the y... end.d 3!t M.r a02t
Ii}MSME

liiil OisDuted dues - MSME
llvl Dkbut.d duer. oth.rc

22,21
14,00
88.14 0.!0

1a,m
110,55

22.21 m2_14

3ln Mar 2024 3r5l Mar 202!

23 Oth.r finand.l lhlllltLi - C{]n rt
G.dito6 tor €pial Soodt
lnt.r.st pry.ble o. L.m L@. {r.lcr .ote 23.1)
Amou.t payable to Boldiq Comp.ny (Efer note 23,2)
Rlt..tion @n.y p:yabl. 58.94

29,74

45,24
46.74

130.92

too,38
13,74

2S3,34 336.95

)3.) amountr palrbleto HoldlnS comp.ny Nil (3tut M.r.h 2023:! 130.82 t khs)

O$.r cur.nt lLbllltht

R.v.nue receiEd i. ade....
30.61

2.14

L2.52

3.26

32.95 1!.33

25

P.dEion for compens.t.d .br.ne5

Prqisio.Ior t.x (netol.dE.c. t.x)

380

to.oo)

2,Oa

(0.m)

3,A! 2.08

cH6tNAl

<1t., l

lnt.r.et pay.ble on terh len ln.ludE lnt.rcn p:Fbl. to Holdlng @mp.ny Nil {3 13t M.rch 2023 < 115.73 l.kk)

['T'"



For the year ended

s, No Parri.ulars
31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

26 Revenue From Operations
a) Sale of Products
Sale of Manufactured Goods

b) Othe, Operating Revenues
Export lncentives

3,7!1.41

47,43

1,592.35

22.67

Total 3,164-84 1,515.02I

Ultramarine Specialty Chemicals Limited
Notes To Fin.ncial Statements For The year Ended 31St March, 2024

S. No Particulars
For the year ended

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023
26.L Oirattretate Revenue lnlormation

Manulactured Goods
Pigments 3,717.41 1,592.35

3,7L7.41 1,592.35

I in l-akhs

\ in lakhs

I in Lakhs

{ in Lakhs

S, No Particulars

for the year ended

31st Mar 2024 31st Ma.2023

27 Other lnaome
A) lnterest lncome
lnterest On Deposit
lnterest On lt Refund

B) Other Non-Operatin8 Income (Net Ot Expenses Directly
Att,lbutable To Such tncome)
Sundry Balance Written Back

Sundry Receipts

C) Other cains And losses
Net Gain5 On Foreign Currency Transactions And Translation

1.52

0.04

0.20
0.72

17.81

0.65

0.01

o.z7

0.57

2.10

Total 19.5q 3.50

Particulars
For the year ended

3lst Mar 2024 31st Ma.2023

28 Co5t of materials consumed

Opening stock of Raw Materials
Add: Purchase of Materials (Refer Note 28.1)

1L5.74

759.22

51.35

548.09
874.96

LO6,79

599.44

115,74

Total 764.77 483.70

L' ,Y

S. No

tess: ClosinB stock of Raw Materials

I

@



24.7 The rollowlnt materlals consumed & expense lncurred durlng the period oftesl & t.lal production which were
not lnaluded ln the respective expenditure acaounti.
Consumption of Raw Material - f15.62
Salaries & WaSes - 37.58
Payment to ContGdors - L1.47

Power&Fuel - 57.19

Total 227.96I

Ultramadne Speclalty Chemlcals Umited
Notes To Financial Statements For The year Ended 31St March, 2024

< in Lakhs

I in takhs

S. No Partiaulars

Fo. the year ended

3lst Mar 2024 31rt Mar 2023

29 Chantes ln lnventories Of Finished Goods, Stock-ln-Trade And Work-ln-Protress
lnvento es At The End Of The Year
Worl-ln-Pro8ress
Finished Goods including in transit
Total

483.59

368.56

lnventorl€s At The Betinning Ot The Year

Wo.k-ln-Progress {Refer Note 29.1)
Finished Goods including in transit
Total

444.64

zLO.45

655.10

444,64

210.46

655,10

111.95

111.95

Total {197.05} (543.15)

29,1 Value of products produced durin8 tha period oI test & trial production in prevlous year

< in Lakhs

Particulars

tor the year ended

3lst Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

30 Employee Benelit Expense

Salaries, Wages, Eonus And Other Benefits

Contribution To Provident Fund And Other Funds

Gratuity
Staff Welfare And Amenities

257.09

22.28

25.82

719.26

10.20

!.r2
13.91

Total 307.58 144.49

I in La khs

S. No Partiaulars

for lhe year ended

3lst Mar 2023

31 Finance Cost

lnterest On Term Loans From Banks

lnterest On Term Loan From Holding Company
lnterest On WorkinS Capital Loan

lnterest On WorkinB Capital Loan From HoldinS Company
lnterest - Othe6

Less: Transferred to Capital work-in-Progress

276,a5

151.39

12.O7

4.36
0.35

174.49

83.26

5.51

0.18

445.O2

(3.e0)
265.76
(s5.62)

Total 44L.L2 209,14

1

INDIA
c0 n^r

S. No

31st Mar 2024

852.15



Ultramarine Spe.lalty Chemicals l"imited
Notes To Flnancial Statement' For The year Ended 31St March, 2024

I in Lakhs

S. No Particulars

For the year ended

31st Mar 2024 31st Mar 2023

32 Other Expenses

Consumption Of Stores And Spares
Packing Materials Consumed

Technical Royalty Fee (Refer Note No.49)
Payment To Contlactors
Repalrs And Maintenance:

Machinery
Buildings

Others
Laboratoay Expenser

lnsurance

Freight And Forwarding Expenses

Sitting tees To Directors
Rent
Rates & Taxes

Eooks & Periodicals

Printint & Stationery
Travelling & Conveyence Expenses

Communication Expenses

Legal And Professional Fees

Donation
Bank Charges

Commission On Sales

Advertisement And Sales Promotion Expenses

Provision For ooubtful Advances

Security Expenses

Miscellaneoui Expenses (Note (i) Below)

78.6''
8.59
4.4L

4.75

27.73

49.11

1.60

2.50
33.s6

2.79
4.13

21.27

4.80
67.42

2.@
11.31

5.32

10.54

18.99

20.91

40.04

26.42

117.55

38.90

4.U
1.60

3.37

5.83

22.70

0.92

13.47

0.62

5.13

1.95

21.32

r.74
3.49

o.o7

22.80

Total 859.95 345,26

(i) Payment to Auditors (in.luded in mircellaneous expenses)

As Auditors
Audit Fees

Tax audit fees

Other services
- Limited Review

- certification Fees

- Other Services

3.00

0.50

o.75

0.55

1.00

0.50

1.50

Total 5.80 4.00

c*NNAII rNblA

6u

61.21

42.69

148.69

227,56

z.oo

I

I



Ult .marhe Specl.lty Ch.mlok Umhed
Notes to f.a.cl.l 

'ot.m.nt 
fo. th. year e.ded 3rn M.rch, 2024

34 Employe. Beneftr

(l) clalm! .gal.it the Comp.nyldBput.d tt.bili!i.s not acknowtEdSed at d.btt
in r.sp..t ol labour disputet
(li)BahkGu.ant .s iisued and oukt.ndins
(iil) Len.r of Cr.dit k5ued and ouBt..ding

Ii] Prop..ty, Pl.nt & Equipme.t, €stimat.d.hounr olcontEcts remaini.g to
b..x.cur.doncapnal.cou.tand notp.ovided,or
Atarnrrwhich adv..ce !aid
(il) other commitm.nrs - Fo. NatuElGas proc!.emenr

1,2s8.!9 552.57

115.6799.41
r81,14

lal Dcf.ld Conrrl!{rdon PBn

Tb. Comp..Y m.kei Prcvid.nt tund conlributlon! to defined co.vibution pl.ns lorqualifyina chploy.6. U.d.rrh. sch.res, the Comp.ny is

Eq uiEd to contnbute a specified pcrE nl.a.olth. payrollcosts tofundth. b.n.lits. The contributio p.y.bl. bVthe comp.ny.Eatdt i 5p..rl].d
ln th. rLrl.! o1 the r.hemes.

31M.rdrto2:l
., Contnbunon ro anployes Prcvid..t Fund 15.32 10.20

15.32 10.20

IBI oenn.d Contnbuuon Plan
Gatuity {fund.d ) ls payable to .ll meob.rs rh.Et.of15d.yssalaryfor..chcoopl.tedyearof5e ic.

l.Re.onclllationof openlnB.nd.losinsb.lan.erof Grarl]lryobliBatio.

a, D€rln.d b.n.lt oblig.tio. at the begh.ln3 ol the vear

d.l.n.fits oeytunt5 Du. but unp.id

.. B.h.nt3 P.id diEtlv by.mploy.r
I B.n.flts Pald from fund
g. R.m..iur.m..ts - Financial assumptio.r ..d Exp.rience .djustmenl5

1,29

0,10

2.88 0_78

0_51

1,24

h. Oelln.d ben.fit obliration at iie end ofth. vear 5,5r 1.29

2. Re.o.cllialio. ofopenl.s and closlne balancer ot fairvalue ol Dlan a5set5

a. F.rvalu. of Pl.n Ass.E.r rh. E.rnhrrna of the year

b. adjBtrunt to Opening balanc.
c. Exp.ct.d R.turn on PlanA5seti
d, co.tnbunon by th. Employer

e,Be..fllt P.ld tbm th.funds
t. R.m..su..m..ts - Retum on Assetj

4.65

0,s9
6.29

10.031

0.18

10.07)

c. fak valu! ofPlan a*ts at the EDd ofth. year 11,45 4.55

b.Sen.fi P.yh.nrs due but unpald

e. Exp.ct.d..tun on plan asers
l. Net Aduan.l lcah)/Loss

2.8t

0.10

l0.se)
L.27

0,r8

0.tt

lo.18l
0.07

r. Tot.lExo.nres recopnised in stateme.toi Profirand Loss 3.56 r.18

4. Amount re.otnised l. the 8ala.@sheer

.. PG3..t v.l!. of S.neft ObliSation ar th..nd ofthe

b. Fak v.lu. ol PIan A5scts ar th. End ol the y.ar

r.79

l4.5sl
.. Funded slat$ SurP us {Defkit)
d. Ner Lrabrrrry/ la$€t) Re.osnised ln the Balan.e rheet s.941 I3.35)

rot.l :.tu..ial (Gain )/Lo$ L.21

R.m..e!ENnl5 - Flnancial.ssuBp!ion, and Erp.n.nc. adiuxments

R.m.atuEm.nlr - R.tum on tu3.tr
7,24

0.03 0.07

f:

33 contin8.nrllabilitierandcodmiimentjltorhee{€ntnotprovidedtor)

Thecomp:ny has recoented th.lollowina adounts ln the statem€ntol pronr.nd lo,s:

35.95

as rt A'.t
3r M.rdr 2024 !1 M.rct 2023

!. rl..!r€. recotnls€d in tt. statlmenr of Proft .nd tos ln rBpect of I ln t *hs
Arat Ar.tPanlol'R :tt M.r.h 2024 3lM.rcn 2o2a

5,51

{1r-4,

*..'"
As.t Ar at

P'rtlol'6 tl Mardr 202/1 31M.rch 202'



Ultr.madnc Sp€d.lty Ct.mk h Umited
Notes to fdncl.l nit n.nl. for tte ye.r c.ded 319r M.rd, 2O2a

6. O.elptlo. ol pl.n .s!€ts

b. D€tt lnit.uhent! & Co.porare Bonds
.. C.rh & c.sh tqulvaled

11.45 4.55
11.45 4.65

7. Aduarl.l assumDilons

:l1Mardr 2023

b.s.larv E aalatlon i:te
,,24X
8.50X

Mon:lttl 12012-141

7,53

8.50X

8. tup.cted luture c.!h flowr ar on

M.lurlty Profile of D€llned senefr Obligations

ProFctlrl !.mfh. D.y.bl€ ln futurc y€.rs from tne drt! of .€poruq
0.01
1.89

0.13
1.05

0.9:t

2.92

0.01
0.01

0.56

0.t1
0.29
0,59

gtnn rnt ..tu.ria, .ss{mptioni lor th. d.t€rmln.tlon o, th€ defiEd b€..nt oblli.tlon ar. dlscou.r rat! .nd e4.ct!d elery lnde.s€. rtle rn.ltlvhv .nalysls below
hlw b€n d.t rml..d lased on r€asonably posCbl. .h.ntee of rhe re3pecrlw .$umrtloff o@rlry at the .n.l ol th. rcro.d.! ,€riod, B l. holdl.t all otner

a l. L2Lhr

ER: sal..y E*rl.don Rate

Change ln Pres.nt Value Obllgatlon . l.c/ (oecl {0.201
-1.72%

o,22

t.99%
10.22)

-3,90%t2%
ahoush th. a.alysls does not tale a.countol th. full dls&ibution ol ca5h flow3crp..ted und€rthe plan, I does p,ovlde an aPProrlmation ol tn. se.ilullty of the

Iher. pl.n! typi..lly .xp6e the comp.ny to..t!.l.lriski su.h.5 ;inveslm.nl d5k, ini.re3t nsk,loneevity rlsk.nd t.|.ry rltl.

Th. pc5.nr v.lu. olrhe d.nn.d b.n.nt pl.n li.bility h Glculated using a discounr nt. which ie detemined by r.l.Enc. to rurt.tylcld!.t the.nd
ofthe Eronina p.rlod on aov.mm.ht bondr.llth. Etom o. pla. a$et ii below thit at.,lt willcre.t. plan d.ficlt,

The pr.5.nt valu. ofthe defin.d benent plen llabilily G c.lcllated usihg a dircou.t nr. which ir determin€d by refer.nc! to f,.rket yielde at th..nd
otth. Eronina p.riod on edemm.ht bondi.ltth. retarn on pl.n a$et k below thi3 Ete, it will.Eate plan deficit.

Th. pc*nt6l!. of the defined b.n.nt ph.li.bllity i5..lculat.d usin8. di5.o!nt at. whi.h i5 detemincd by ELrr.c. io m.riltYi.lds.tth..hd
of !h. dponlnt p.riod on g@mmnt bo.d!. ll $. ntum on pl.n a3set le b.loe lhlt Et!, lt wlll cr..t plan d.ncii

The prei.nt v.lu! ol rh. d.nn.d bcn.nt plan liablrity i! calcul.tEd usins. dl5cou6t 6t. whlch k determln.d by r.l.r.nc. to m:rl.t yleld3 at th..nd
ofth. Egortlna p.riod on gdernment bondr.ltih. r.turn on plan e$et is b.low lhlr rat., it will.reate plan deliclt

clf.NNAlrtNrrA

AZ

0.23

i9



uhr.d.nne specl.lty OEmlcaE Umtted
Noter to fn.n.lal ltar.m.nts lor the yea. ended 3ln Mar.lr,2024

,5 Tar Etp.G.

IalAmounts Reco$i*d hSt teEert o, proflt ..d lott

DudnS the Cuftnt linanci.l ye.r, no t.x expe.!.5.3 b..n r.cognk.d in the statetu ol Prcfrt & loss..d.lto.o prryt5to. tort.r h.r b€en €cord.d

Yeat ended 3lrt March 2024 Yearended3lrt March 2023
%

lar lrlry rhe company's domesric tax rare, curent Yc.rTax Rate 17.16%

365.24

62,67

(0.0s%)

L.is: Pemanent difi eren.es

O6..lio6r, Rats and Iex.tand PrdGionr

l.s: Efi.rt oi Otnfi Differetres
r.t.Est €pitalis.d tor rax purposes

o.pEci.tion 6phalG.d i. b@kj

71.76%

0-39*

{0.3s%}

0

0

174
(0 1e)

L1,10% 41.95 71.5M 64-21

16 Fl....lallnstrom.nB

All llna^cial instruhents aE initially recog.ls.d and iubs.quentlyro-me.ro.ed at lairvalue as desc.ibed below:

l) Thcfairvalueof investmentlnquotedEquitysh.r.ilim.asur.datquotedpriceorNAV
ll)Ih.frkvalueofFoMardFoEigntuchans.contEcltitd.t.rmrn.dlstngfo ard excha.ge EtBetth. b.t.n.. !h!erd.t..
ii)alllonlgicurEncydenominatedas.tsandllablliil.sa€trahnar.d!5insexcha.geEteatrepo.tingdat.rccpt.dv.n..Ec.ivedorpaid

iv)Thefairvalueoltherem.iningfinanci.linrtrum.ntskd.!.rmin.dori.8dicou.ted.ashflowanalysis.

rh:rd.l lffiwnts by cat tory
Th. tolloslng t ble shows rhe Brryirg .mounis .nd hir v.la.s ol lin.nci.l as*ts and financial li.balitl4, includina th.t r.v.lr in the f.ir value hieEahy

A5at31n M.rch,2024 A! at 3ln Mard,2023

AMOUNT
Fl.andal arets at af,onis€d @nl
No.arr..t f neadal ass.ts

oth.r Fh.nci.lA5i.t! - s.curiv DeDosit 33.06 3l05 13.55 13 65

33.06 :t3.05 13.65 13.55

cu.re.t tlnanclal assets

Cash and cashequivalent5

other Financial assets - other Receiv.ble

457,67

0.29
4.55

624,08

174.44

111.71

7.65

5_31

303,ir4

t7a.4a
111,71

),65
0.29

5.31

to!..4

Iotal Flnan.lal A$€t at Amoniled Cost 657,14 657.14 477.09 t17.09

Flnami.l llabilitiB held at amord*d @nl
Notr - Curr€nt 6nanci.l llabilnet
8o(owi.gr - Te.m Loan Frcm a Bafk
gorowings -T..m Loan From Uoiding Company

7.50% Non Cumulative Redeemable Prelerence share capila (Reler.o1.13.s)

7.se* Non c!mulativ. option.lly conveniblG P..l.Gnc. Share capilal (qete.

oth.r finan.ial liabillties

2,399.58
t,214.69

2,900.00

3a0.oo

68.91

2,399.53
r,214 69

2,900.00

380.00

64.91

1,505.00

2,200-or')

340.00

6,83

2,4-17.01

1,505.0O

2,200.00

38000

6.a3

7,483,18 7,48!.18 6,s58.84 6,568.84

Clrrent f landal ll.blllt es

Borowlhgg - cur.nt Maturities of Bank

S6dowlnas - cur.nt Maturiri.! ofBolding cohp.ny
wo*i.g capital loan lrom Bank

Bridg€ loan from holdinE comp.ny

O$.. nn:ncEl lia biliri€s

594.17

224.94

a0.96

594.17

224.94

556.04

24334
565.O4

2a3.34

122.92

229.47
70.00

724,55

336.96

8!t5.75

r22,92
11,46

229.47

70.oo

124.55
335.96

t95,76

lor.l finan.lal li.biliti* e ied ar.mortlsed cost 9,212.67 9,232.51 7,464.60

6s

lB) Re.ondllation of efieGive Iax iate

453.15

79.44

1r.10

{1.61)

L7.76%

o.29

8.65

524.04

@



Ultram.dn. Sp.d.lty Olc {..ls Umh.id
NotB to tn.nd.l rt tsments fo, th. t..r .nrted 31st M.rctr, 2O2a

C a.ir VBlu€ Hierar.ht

Th. Comp.ny h.s exposuE to the followi.g rlskr arlrln! lrcm tih.nclal inrtrum..tii
-CEdlt rllk
-Llquldltyrisk
-Ma*.t rtl
.lntercit nt risk

iltl managem.nt framewo.l

Th€ Company ha3 a risk oanag€m.nt policy which cov.E nsk! a$oci.ted with th. li.ancial atsets a.d liabllitl.s, Th. risk m.nagement pollcy h.pp@ed bythe Eoard ol
Dic.toB. The f*us of th. rkl m.nag.rent comhltt.. lr to a$e$ th. lhpEdi.t.bllity ol the nn.h.l.l ..vlronmnet and to mitlSat pot.ntl.l adve6e efle.ts on th.
finan.ia, p.rfom.he olth. company.

lael wise dlsclosure ol Flnan.lal lnstrum€nts

lhetinancl.linst.!m.nts.rec.reSorisedinrorhree.vetbaledonrheinpur!usedroariveatfairv.t!em..surEm.ntsasdercrib.db.tow:

iiil L.v.l3: rl one or rcre orth. signiticant inpurs is not b*.d on ob5eryabl. m..(.r d.ta, $. ihstrumerr is tnctud.d in tevet3

Th. Comg.nyr poliry it to r.rongl5e tEnsfeB lnro.nd ranreG out of fair v.lo. hleaEhy levek a! rr th..nd ollh. Eportine p.riod

FINANCIAT AsSETS/TINANCIAT L|AAIU ES
HI'RAiCHY

TICHN|qUES& (EY

INPUT5 U5EO
31.03,2023

Borcwi.8s lncludins C!tre.t Borowinas 5,034,34 4,476.26
7.scrl Non Cumulative i.de.mable Preferehce 5h.rc capital 2,9m.OO 2,200.00

7.5094 Non Cumul.dE oprioneiiy convertible PBLr.n.. Sharecaptal 380.0O 330.0C

37 Fh.ncl.lrirlman.gement

L.v.l 1: Level t hieEEhy l..lud.! li.ancial i.strum.nt3 me$red usi.g qloted pri..s. Thi3 includer lirt.d .qlity instrumnrs, t6d!d bondj .nd mutuat fu.ds rh:r h.v.
i) q lot d prke. Ihe hir v.lu. ot .ll .qoity inrtrurun$ (lncluding bond, which .c rad.d i. th. stek .r.h.ni.t l5 Elued lsine rh. ctoiinB prte * at th! Epor!ry p.nod,

Ih. mutual fund3 .r! v.l!.d using the closln! NAV.

L.v.l2:The fairv.lue ol financialinttrum.nts th:t.r. hottraded in an acuv. m:rl.t {for.xample, tEded bondr, derthe{ohr.rd.rrvatrv.!} It determined u31.8 ihe

an ltutrument are obt.Ebl., theltutlm..t is includ.d I.level2

Cr.d[riskistheriikoliin.nci.lloritotheCompa.ylt.clrtomero.cou.t.rp.nytoa,]na.cia inltrum.ntt lls to meet it' co.thctu.l obliaatio.s, a.d ans.s pnnclp. ly

1rc6 th. compan/s receivabl.5lrch customeE,loant and l.v.ttme.t in debt !.curluc!. Th. Complny.rtabll3h.e an allowanc.lor doubtlultade @eivabl.r.nd
impairnent that Epret.nt3 its.stlm:te of incurred lo!3.r l^ r.spect olt6de.nd oth.r rc..lEbles:nd invGnm.nts.

Th. m.rimum exposoE to credit ri5k in.ase olallth. n.a^cial instumenls .over.d b.low is restnded to th.ir r.rp..tiv. carrying.mount,

Ho*.ver theE ir .o prcvi5ion co.iideEd nece$ary.5 th.r. was noove.nueouri.ndi.g receiGbt.s ae on 31!t M.Eh 2024.

Ih. company's exporu r. to.r.dlr nsk i5 influenced m.inivbyth€ indivldua ch.ractersti6oleachcusrod...ThedemogEphicsolth.cuerom.randincludl.gth.delaulr

the fi.dtwonhin.ss ofcustom.R m which the comp.ny g6nts (edii terme ln rh. normalcourse of busi..$,

Ih. cohpanv hea3ur€r th..xp.ct.d credir loss of tade Eceivabl$ bar.d on historlcalt.end, industry p6dic.s.nd th. busin.55.nvirc.ment i. whlch the €ntity
opeEtet, LosrEteeare ba5.d o. actualcredit lort exp.nence and pasttE.dr.

6 mnthr to 12 mnthi

allo*ane for doubtf!l tEd. ..c.iva bles (Elpected rcdit lo$.llowance)

457.61

0,06

178,48

457.61 Lfa,4a

Fin.n.ial A$ets.E @.!ld.Gd to be of Sood quaLltv.nd the€ is.osig.ifica. nc..ar. in fiedit tuk.

otherthan t6d. a.d oth.r Eclivabl.s,lhe ComDanv h.! no other financi.l .$.8 rh:r aB pasrdue but no! rhpared

cunomer.edh risk k m.n4.d.s perrhe Company'i.nablhhed policy, pro..dur.r and contrclEl.ting to cultoher cEdit risk m.n.a.m.nt. cEdit qualitY of . clltoher
B.$e$ed based on. cEdn Erh! score..rd and l.dividu.l credit llmitt aE d.nn.d in ac.ordance with thk.ss63me.t, Outttandina clsrome. Eceivabl.t .E Elllarlv

N..l alriom€r who ow2d more
Contribution of CutlomeE r 6wi^.mo.€than l0.lolTotalrecelvables

64
CHENNAI

9p"

C.rh sd 6sh .quM.l.ntt
.rh! 

Company h.td @rh..d olh lqutvalenre ofi157 47 Lrkhs as at 315t M.(h,2024 (31tt Marh,2O2l: I U1.71takh3).Ih. drh tnd ca3h .quivalenB .E n.U wlrh

31.03.2024

2



Ultr.marlne Sp.clalty Chemlcalr Umtt rl
Not€s ro tlnadal statem.nS lor the y..r.ndcd 3li March,lo24

uso
Averag. Erda.8. i.te

tt@nTr.n*nlon!

24.20
t1.44

42.12
81.24

lpood Tr.ne.tlons

31-Ma124 1,70 82,65

Th. r.blB b.low trcvide d.taiL Eg.diha the contE.tu.l mrtunn.s of sisnificant fin.ncialliabilitie! as at

c3fYnB .nounr - Contradual t!5h flos C.rryiff amou.t . Conua.rual oeh flowe

Nonn.iv.(v€ fl ,...1.1 llabilhles

,.sora No. cum!|.!iv. ied..dab. Pr.l.Gnc. shar. Qrital 2,900.00 2,200.0o
7.5Cf/6 No^ Cuh!1.1i!. Opiio^a V Conv.nrbl. Pref.r.n.eshare c.Dita 340.00
IEd..nd orh.r pav.b.r 566.0a 124.55
Oth.r lin.n.irl liabiliri.t 283.34 63 91 336.96 533

Tolal.oni.rivstlve fr m.cl.l ll.6llllle5 1,749.49 7,1u3.18 494.76 6,568.84

Llquldlty dsk It the drt rhar th. Compa.y will .ncounter dimcuty in meeung th. ob rgations a$eiated with iti tinancialtiabitities that are settled bydetivenna c.sh o.

16m.wor( torth. m:n.s.m.nt ohh. Company'i rho.t-term, h€drum't.rm ahd lo.g-term funding a.d liquidity management requiEment3.Ih. cohp..V han.s.j
llquldity riik bY monno.ins lor.catt.^d actu.lcash flows, maintaining.dequate r.setoes ahd by mat.hins rhE matu.ity profiles offinanciala$eti..d li.billu.s.

th. following t.bl. analyr.s tor.ign cur€ncy rirk from linancial i.struren$ as of 31st Mlrch 2024and 31st M.rh 2023

tn Latha

rorcltn cur.nq rlnruuriy ,nrlyslr

The Company k m.irly .rpo!..| to lh. cu...ncy : USo

Thc lollowinar.blc d.r.il! rh. company's i.nr vltytoa5%lncreaieanddecreareinth.iupeeagainettheElevanttorcishcureh.ies,ThesensilieitYa..ly!lslncude!
onlyouBt.ndinalocian cu@.cy d.nohinated mnet.ry itemi.nd adjusri th.irtdnel.tion at the period e.d for a s9a ch.Be in toEiSn cur.ncY Er.. A positiv. numb.r

beiow indi..res rn incEas. in !h. prcflt o..qlity whee rh. Rup.e nr.nlrh.ne 5%.gainet the Elevant.!ftn.y. rora 516 weakeni.S olth. Rup...8.in*th. cl.v.^t
cur.n.y, th.G eould b. a comp.nbl. imp.ct on th. prclit or.quity,.nd th. bal.ncee below wolld be..gatlv..

M.rt.t rtk ir ihc rlsk thar rh. Li. v.lu. or lutuc @rh flors ol th. finah.ial lNrrutunt will flu.tuate be@$e of.ha.g.! in m.rket pri@r , 5!.n cha4.t in v.lu.r ot
,l..ncl.l inttrumnts m.y r.3!lt lrod ch..8.5 In foEign cliilncy lxcha.ge 6tes, .Edit , liquidity..d othe. rorket ch.nges. The Compr.y's .tpotarc to Grt.l rl.k It
prim.n[on.@uit ol lohitn .umncy !rch.ng. Bt..itk.

l.) ro.elF Cur.ncy Er.n.nt. n te ilrt
th. comp.ny und.n.k.! t..nta<tio., d.nomi..ted l. loEign .uiienciesi consequently, .xposucs to .rchange Et. floctu.tio.s a.ite. Erch.nie 6t. .rporur.. a@

ro..8.d otlltlnatoMrd loclan.xch.nS. conr6dr-

U

31 Mar.t 202:,

lncr.at. in.xchanS. rat. bY 5% 9.90

DecEat. i. er.hans. rat. by 5% {9.901 14.67)

lnt.Esr Ete risk h rh..lik that th.l.irval!. or fltur. cash llows ofa lin.n.ialinstrlment willnoctuate because ofchanger in ma.k.r ht.rest 6tes. Th. cohp.ny's

.rporoE to the tuk of ch.n8.t l. mark.r int.rc3r €ter relares p.lmarilv to th. compan/s lohg-t.rm debt obligatio^s with floatinS lnt.rest 6t8 Th. cohpahv consta.t v

honiroBthe.rcdlt m..k.ls.nd Eb.l.nc.s it3 nnancingstEleSi.stoachieve an optimalmaturitv pro,lleand fin.ncing .ott. The compa.V ma..8.5ltl rnr.rcn ate.Gk bY

havlnS. bala.c.d ponlollo otltxcd.nd varl.ble Ele borowinsg

Exch:nEe Rate 0NR/USDIUSD

2,49 42.39

a1.70

Accounts Receivable

31-MaF23

aa.)7

Accounts Pavabl.

0.10

-

Bposure to lnrQr.rt r.t. rlsl

Ihe lnlereetBte prolll. ollh.Cohpanv,3 inter.n-bearinS financial instrumenrs as reponed he.t ol the comp3ny is aslollows

/

I



Ulvam.ri.e SpedahyCtemlc.b Lhlt.d
Not.r to fdanclal slat€n€ntr tor tli. yc.r ..d.d 3ri M.r.h, 2024

March31,2023
rbadng Rat lnstlm.nr

4,4t6.26

7.50% llon Cumulative iede.mabl. PEf.Enc. share capltal 2,900.00

340.00

2,200.00

3a0-007,5Cr( Non Cumulative Option.lly convertible PrefeEnce Share capit.l

1,944.44 6,616.26

33 ielated party dlscloiurer

Relatlves ol xey Ma.agenal Perso.nel

2 trans.Gtlotrs crrled out *lrh rel.red p3nles referred ln l above, in o.dinary.ourre oI boslnes

I lta es olrelaGd p.rd€!.nd.atu,. ot relauonshlp
N.t!re olr.l.tlonshlp

Key Management Perbnnel

t{am. ol rcl.r.d 9.ny
Utt6mri.e & Pi8@nt ltd
Uh6m.ri.. rin. Ch.mic.l! Ltd

Mr. R. Samp.th Oicctor - Non- ErEUtiv.
M3.T.6 P.nh.3.nrhv DiEClor- Non. axecutive

Mr. v, BhratEm Ok..tor- Non- Exdutiw
Mr, Navin M R.m lnd.plnde.t DiEctor- Non- Er.curiv.
Mr.s. Raru..n comp.ny s.cr€t.ry

202t-24 2022-21

Purch.sc of Marerl.l/ storet
uhEma.ine &Pigme.ts Llmt.d

UltBmarine & Pi8rc.t5 Llmlt.d

U tramarine & PiAm€nte Limlled

ShareAppli6tion Money R.celved trod Ultr.m3rlne& Plgment5 Llmltcd
Utillzed for lssu! ofequlty.nd p..te,€n@ shares

lechnl@l Royalty dpehsee
UltEmarine & Pigmente Limir.d

Relmbuem.ntol t penr€t

UltBm.nne & Pigrents Lifrir.d

Term Lo3n from Holdlm comp.ny
Term Lo.n re@ived duri.g th. y.ar
Term Loan r.paid donng th. y.ar

Subsctlptlon to Eqrlty sh,rcs
UltEhar ne & Plemenc Lmted

srbsiprlon ro Pr.fer.n.e Sh.ret
!ltBrurine & Pigm€nts Lldired

UltEm.nn. & PiamnB Limit.d

Ult6m.rine & Plah.nrs Limired

lal UhtamadE & Pl3D.nB U6L.d
cost of Land .nd other r.l.t.d cosl p.yable

Sharc applkation mn.v c.iv.d D€ndins for allolhent

lnl.eston L€. Pay.bl.

lb) Mr. Vidya Sampath - Re.t lor March 2024

Outstandi.g Rec.iv.ble
Ms,Vldya Sampalh - Rent D.poet
UltEmarine & Pigm.nts Limited

2.2a

102.20

2,300

l2,ss0)

1{A.69

847.0()

962.38

148.12

1,450.fi)

72-OO

2.7'
0.21

0.58

50.00
1,459,53

150.59

o.tl
0.2!

o.23

0.99
101.8

60.25

35.00

7,25

1,410

11,505)

1,69

1,02s.00

85.58

1,124.00

38r.00

45,90

2.18

1:to.82

300-oo
1,505.00

70,0o

'r5.78

1,48

0,20

o,9t

@



Ultram. ne Speclahy ChEml€ls Umit€d
Note. lo f.3ncial staiements for tie ylar e.d.d:llst March,2024

lhe 6mp:ny i5 e.g.ged inrh. ru^uiaaureand s:le ol chemicals and accod'ngly har onlyo.€ repon.bl. sesm..t. Henc.,th.r..r. n6.dditioialdisclosuE to b!
p@ided uhdcr lhd A5 108 'Op.atin8 S.gmnts'.

lal Go8Epnkd inrom.do.
Th. Cohpanyi! domicll.d in lndl..Ih..mountofiri revenue from .xt...al cunom.c and non<urrent ess.ts oth.r th.h fin.nci.l i8ttun.n$,.nd d.l€rEd tax.i5et5,
bbken down bv lGation ofth..rt.ts, i3 3hown below:

r ln rrths

i,lstM.rch,2023

39

Revenue from Operatlo.s

2,O25-56

264.42

554.52

903.10

1,511.02

75,r24.77 11,337.65

15,J24.22 11,337.65

40 ClFValueoflmports

33,46

57.18

75.51

4l Erpenditure in Forelgn Cu.r.ncy

33.'r5

Lecal and Prclessional charces 10.54

10.64

42 Eaml.gs ln forela. cu.r..clet

Erpon of g@d! elculat€d o. Fo3 basis 2,302.35 1,079.35

2,302.t5 1,079.35

code on 50.lal 9e.urid.s

TheCentEtGovemme.thatpablrrh.dlhecodeonso.ialsecunty,2O2OandlndunrialR.l.tioNCode,2020("thecod.5')inth.Gazen.otlndia,inteGlia,s!bsuhing
va.iousexistingl.bour.nd indultrrallaws whi.hdealrwith employees includiht p6t.mployre penod. Th..It crlv.d.t.olth.cod..ndth.rules.Eyettob.
.otified. The imp.ct of th. l.tBr.tiv. ch.ng8 ifanywillbe arlested.nd rccqni3.d posl notifi@tion ol.el€Ent prcvl3lont

t .r{rEs p€r sha.e lEEl

a6t E 5 arcuhts .c ..t.ot.r.d by dtvid lni rh. profir for the vear atMbut.bl. lo .qu8 holdeB of the comp.ny by rh. *.Eht d .wdac numb.r of EqultY sh.Es

outstendinE durlng th. y..r,

D[!t d Eps emunt3 erc c.tcutet.d bydtvldtna the pEfit anributable to.qurty holdeE of the conpany by the w.l8hted.v.r{. numb.rof Equity th.es outst$ding

l. Proflt attrlbutable to Equrty holdeB ofcompa.y

Profit .tt lbut ble to .qulty holders ol the company tor b.5i. and dlluted
381.19 300.97

ll. welghted aver.ge .uDber of ordlnary sha,es

a, N!mberof|tsu.d eqlity eh.Es.t 1sl Ap.il2023

b. Efle.tofshaE3 hsoed a,
Nominalvalue persh.B

3,12,50,000
39,91,803

10

2,20,10,000
51,42,959

t0

c. welghted aw.age nuhber ol rharet at 31$ March lor basic and drluled 3,72,At.&a 2,ft,42,959
earninss oer sturele+b)

,rrffIP
/1

--g-



Ult.amarlne Spe.laltyCh.ml6B Umlted
Notes ro fn.&hl n.tlDenr5 lor th. ye.r.nd.d 31n M8r.h,202a

44,1 st.t.menr r.oret.ntln. the welrht.d .v.ra.. .umb.r ot5har.3

Nlmber of$.res Cumulatlve No. ofShares

2,20110,O0O

13,400O0

99,OO,OOO

2,20,10,00t)
2,33,50,00O

3,32,50,0O0

t6t
131

t44

2,20,10,000

la,17,2AS
39,OS,tS1

r.71,52,958

23{4-2022 Eqolty Sh.c.l$u.d to Ull..m..l.. &Pl8m.nls Ltd

07-11-2022 aqulty Sharc! lsru.d to Ull6m.rl.. & PlSm.nts Ltd

31{3,1023
01{4-t0r3 Op.nl !.1.... of lqulty Sh..B
31{5-2023 Ecuitv sh.r.5l55u.d to Ult6h.nn. & Pirn.nB Ltd

2343-2024 lquitvsh...3 ii3u.d to Ultah.nn. & Pian.nG Ltd

31{l-2o2a loi.l

,,12,50,@
45,00,000
93,33,333

3,32,50,mO

3,77,50,000

4,70,83,333

166

306
9

,,tt,50,000
3-/,67,295

2,29,503

4,70,83,333 4,12,41,&3

6s



Ultrama nG SEGl.lty Ch.mlcalj Limit.d
Not r toflnan.i.lst t€ments forthc yc.r endcd 31.!r Mrrch,2024

45 Dir.lorures r€quir.d ai p.r Ml.ro, Sm.ll .nd Mcdium Enrerprii.i D.vetophcntA.t, 2(A6,

2023-24

(il Prin cipal amount an d lnrer€st payable to the suppli€rs as at th€ €nd of the a ccounring year 210,32 21.31

{ii)The amount of intere5t paid by the buyer an terms ofSec.16 of the Micro, Smalland N,l€dium Enterprtses D€velopm€nt Act,
2005 alont withthe amountofpayment h.de to the suppli€r b€yond the appointed day during each.ccounting year

Nit Nil

{iii)Iheamount ofitrter.rl due and payabl. forthe period otdel.yin ftakingpaym€nt lwhich hav. be€n p.id but b€yond th.
appointed day durintthe yearlbut withou addif,tthe int€r.st specified under the Micro, Smalland Mcdium Enterpris€t N

liv)Ih€ amount oflnlEr.rt accrued and remaining unpaid atth€ €nd ofeach accountin8 year 0,i14 0.18

(v)Ih.amount offurth.r interest rem.inint due and payabl. ln th. succeeding years, untilsrrch dat. wh.nthe intcren du€s as

above ar€ actually paid to the small enterprise, forthe purpose of disallowanc€ ai ded!ctible expenditur. u/r 23 ol Micro, Small

and Medium Enteryris€r Developm€nt Act,2m6
Nit Nit

and Small Enler

As pertheAndhr. Pr.d.th lndunrial D€v.lopment Poli.y 202G2024, the .ompany is entitledtoth. belowmention.d bcnents on commec.m€nt of commercial prod uction

ICOCP). The below m.ntion.d b.neflts.r! bar.d on the clasili.alion of status olth. company as lart€.nterpds. dl.r.lng thc y.ar.

llon- Curr€.t borro*ln$

Netdebt as at 31st Mar.h 2022 181.t0 3,6a3.79 ,,702.29

Foreitn.x.hanS. adlustments

lnteren expens€s (inclurl€i lnteren caphalired I56.52)

othcr non-ca5h mov€m.nis
A.quisitions/dispo5als
tairvalu. adjurtm.nts

(59.7e) 2,687.01

255.58
(227.58)

299.47 ,,055.57

265.53

1221.s81

N.t debt as at 31rt Mar.h 2023 111.71 5,608.80 299.47 5,796.95

f or€itn exchante adjuslmcnts
lntcr.n erpens€r {in(ludes lnterest capitalis€d l3.90 l. khr )

lnt€r€n paid

Olh.r non-.ash md.m.ntj
Acquisitions/dltporak
Fan valu€ adJunm€ds

45.76 1,671.35

a45.02
(491.80)

(218.91) 1,405.59

445.02

1491.80)

Nlt d.bt .s at 31st M.r.h 2024 t57.47 E,233.38 80.96 8,156.87

(al50% r€imburs€m€nl of n€t acrrued 5G5T to the state for 5 y€ars from the date of COCP

Net o€bt Reaonciliation

tu.t31.03.2024 A5 at31.03.202f,
Lakh,

Cr!h a.d Cash equivalents 157.47 111,71

900.07 434.26

Non- Cunent borowings inlcuding Current Matu^ies 7,414 2l 6,427.63
46 t8Orher Financial Li.bilities - Interest P.yable

8,314.34 5,904.57

E,155.E7 6,-194.95

This rection s€ts out an an ofnet debt and the movemenG ii net d€bt for the

The company hasus€d accounting softwar€ IERP) for maintaining its bcots of arcounl have, feature of.mbedded audir rallat tansaction lev.lon appli(atron laYer which

creatg unique events for .very tranraction alon8 with dat€ of creation , updation and id€ntity of us€rs. Transactions rE.orded in tRP are not auowed to be modilied after

portin& There are no iniances ofaudit trcilfcature beint tamp€red with and th€ sam. has been oF.rat.d throughoutlha y.ar for alltransaclions recorded in lhc

database levelchangcr is available only to authorked p€rsonn€|. Howeverthe softwarevendor confirmed that there i5 no audit trailenabl€d for database l€vel changes and

is in the process of developint audit lrailfor any dataLale lev.lchanSes and expected to be complet€d duringlune 2024

proce5s know-howto manufacture, sale and / or djstibuticn of lnorganic PiSm€nts. The Companyto paY Royalties @ 3% oll net saler of lnorganic Pigments per contract Ycar

tothe I olding Company. Acrord:ngly, Royalty expen$ of i148.59lakhs has been r€cogniled durint the currentyear including\48|a*hsforfrsl year of commer(ial

4A

3ro

5

49

15

17

;1
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S0. Ratios

Reason for Variance by more than 25%

as compared lo p.y.(Positive or
Nesative)

Ratio l.\. 2023-24 F-Y. 2022-23 c,4 Uatien e

Due to lncrease in current maturiti€s of
borrowings and Trade payables asthe
company is fully operational during the

Current Liabilities 1.61 132.241(a) Current Ratio 2.37

TotalDebt

(TotalEorrowinS,

Shareholder's Equity
(Shareholde15' funds other than Other
Comprehensive lncome)

{b) Debt-Equity Ratio

1.75 (19.49)

Earnings available for debt service
(Net profit after taxes + Depreciation and

amortiration + Finance cost)

0ebt Service
(lnterest & Lease Payments + Principal

Repayments)

3.17 3.47 {18.11)(cl Debt SeNice Coverage Ratio

N€t Profits aftertaxes AveraBe Shareholder's Equity 7.76%(d) Return on Equity Ratio 9.62% (19.39)

{e) lnventory Turnover Ratio 5a e of Materials 3.98 3.57 11.73

Average Accounts Receivable 11.69 11.84(f) Trade Receivables Turnove r Ratio TotalSales
Oue to increase in trade receivables as

(34.50) the company is fully operational durin;
the yeer

Due to increase in trade payables as the
(53.61) company isfullyoperational duringtheAv€rage Trade Payables 2_20 4_74(g)Trade Payables Turnover Ratio

Totalsales Working Capital 3.43 1_21 169.94(h) Net CapitalTurnover Ratao
Oue to increase in Sales a5 the company
is fully operatlonal durinS the yeer

(i) Net Profit Ratio Net Prof ts after taxes TotalSa es 0.10 0.19 (4s.67)
Oue to increase in Depreciation, finance
cost and technical royalty fee

Earning before interest and taxes

(Profit before tax 1 Finance Costs)

CapitalEmployed

(Net worth + Total Debt + oeferred Tax

Uabilaty - OCladiustments for FairValue of
lnvestments Recognised )

633% s_61% 11.58U) Return on Capital Employed

lncome from lnvestm€nts(k) Return on lnvestment

1.41

TotalPurchases

)

Cost of Investmentss



51 CorporateSocial Responsibility

As per Section 135 (1) ofthe Companies Act,2013, a company, meetinBthe a pp lica bility threshold duringthe immediately precedinS financialyear, needs

to spend at least 2% of its average net profit forthe immediately preceding three financialyears on corporate socialresponsibility (CSR) activities. Since

the threshold limit ls not met, the CSR provisions are not applicable to the companyduring the current financialyear.

52 (xher stetutory inrormation
i) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Companyfor holding any benami
property.

ii) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

iiilThe Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other personls) or entitet including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the
understanding that the lntermediary shall:

(a) directly or indiredly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any m an ner wh atsoever by or on behalfofthe company (ultimate
beneficiaries)or

(b) provide any Suarantee, security or the like to or on behalf o, the ultimate benefaciaries

iv)The Company has not received any fund from any person (s) o. entities, including foreign entities (intermediates) with the understanding (wh€ther

recorded in writinS orotherwise) that the intermediate shall:

(a)directly or indirectly lend or lnvest in other persons or entitiei identified in any man ner whatsoever by or on behalf ofthe funding party (ultimate
beneficiarie, or
(b) provide any Suarantee, securityorthe like on behalfofthe ultimate beneficiaries.

vlThe Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accountsthat has been surrendered or disclosed as incom€

during the year ln the tax assessments underthe lncome Tax Act, 1961(such as, search or survey or anyother relevant provisions ofthe lncome TaxAct,
1961.

vi)The Company does not have any subsidiary and hence clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Compa nles {Restriction on numberof Layers}

RuleS 2017 is not applicable to the company.

vii)The companV is not declared willfuldefaulter by and bank or financials institution or lenderduring the year.

viii) The Company does not have aoy charges or satisfaction which isyet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory p€riod.

ixlThe company has obtained working cepitalcr€dit facility ageanst its current assets and hasfiled Quarterly returns or statements of current assets with
banks orfinancial institutions. The filed Return or statements are in agreement with books ofaccounts.

l

xlThe Company has used the borrowings from bank5 Bnd financial institutions for the specifir purpose for which it was obtained.



xi)The title deeds ofallthe immovable properties, (otherthan immovable proper$es where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly

executed in favorofthe Company) disclosed in the financialstatements included in property, plant and €quipment and capitalwork-in progress are held

in the name ofthe company as at the balance Sheet date o(cept:

Relevant line ltem in Ealance Sheel
Description of item

ofproperly
Gross Carrying Valu€

(< in takhs)
Title Oeeds held in

the name of

whether title deed
holder is a promoter,
dkector or relative of
promoter/director or

employee oI
promoter/director

Property held since

which date
beinB held in

Property Plant & Equipment

Plot No.59A 14.59

lndustrial Estate,

Andhra pradesh

lndustrial

Corporation (APllC)

2"d March 2022

The Sale

Agreement is

registered in the
name of the
company and sale

deed willbe

on compliance to
other terms and

conditions. (Refer

Note4)

Property Plant & Equipment

Plot No. 59 BLOCK-

c
7.71Acres of l..nd

ln lndusldal
Estate, Menakur

< 613.26

Andhra pradesh

lndustrial
lnfrastructure
Corporation (APllC)

No 2oth January 2024

The Sale

Agreement is

registered in the
name of the
companyand Sale

deed will be

executed byAPllC

on compliance to
other terms and

conditions. (Refer

Note 4)

xii)The Company does not have any transadions with companies which are struck off

53 Previous years figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessa current year's classification/disrlosure

For Brahmayya & Co

Chartered accountants
Firm Regn. o. q)O511S

A PARTHASARATHY

For and on behalfof Board 
flf 

Directors
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R.NAGENORAN> s.

CHEI{NAI
INDIA

Membe.ship o,203377
Place: chennai
Date : 13th May 2024
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Director
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